BCP

Council

Notice of Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Thursday, 26 October 2023 at 6.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL

Membership:

Chairman:
Clir M Andrews

Vice Chairman:
Clir E Connolly

Clir J Beesley Clir R Herrett Clir C Weight
Clir B Castle Clir M Phipps
Clir A Chapmanlaw ClIr J Salmon

All Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are summoned to attend this meeting
to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5594
if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Democratic Services on 01202 096660 or

email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DEBAT

18 October 2023

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct

Councillors should act solely

Declaring interests at meetings ?n terms of the public
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in interest
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution.
Bgfore the meeting, rgad the agenda aqd reports to see if the matters to be Councillors must avoid
discussed at the meeting concern your interests placing themselves under

any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Openness

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPls)
(set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
| have a DPI and cannot take part without finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
a dispensation Registerable Interests (ORIs)
(set out in Table 2)?

| have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgement s clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but | have no interest to disclose
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your

participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the Councillors should act with
item.

honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves
in situations where their
honesty and integrity may

At the time of making the decision, be questioned

did the decision maker have a closed Leadership
mind?

Councillors should exhibit

Bias Test Predetermination Test

In all the circumstances, would it
lead a fair minded and informed
observer to conclude that there was
a real possibility or a real danger that

the decision maker was biased?

. 4 these principles in their own
behaviour. They should
If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision, actively promote and
they must NOT participate in the meeting. robustly support the
" " " 7 - principles and be willing to
For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer challenge poor behaviour

(susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk) wherever it occurs


mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Apologies

To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors.

Substitute Members

To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.

Note — When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.

Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on
07 September 2023.

Public Issues

To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:-

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteelD=151&l|
nfo=1&bcr=1

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 3 clear working days
before the meeting.

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day
before the meeting.

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the
meeting.

External Auditor — Audit Progress & Sector Update

Grant Thornton, as the Council’'s appointed External Auditors, have
produced a report (Appendix A) which provides an update to Audit &
Governance Committee on their progress to date in delivering their
responsibilities.

The report includes an update on their 2021/22 audit work. Key points of

13-30


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1

note are:

e Financial Statements Audit 2021/22 — Grant Thornton are aiming
to present a draft Audit Findings Report for 2021/22 to the
November meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee and
issue their opinion by the end of November 2023.

e Value for Money 2021/22 & 2022/23 — Regular meetings have
been set up with the Chief Executive, Director of Finance and
Cabinet Portfolio holder responsible for finance to discuss progress
against the recommendations made in their Auditor's Annual
Reports for 2021/22 and 2022/23, as well as other recent external
reports and emerging issues.

The report also includes a summary of emerging national issues and
developments that may be relevant to the Council.

Treasury Management Monitoring update for Quarter 2 2023/24

The report sets an economic update with a Quarter 2 performance for
2023/24 which forecasts an underspend of £730k due to the increase in
interest rates, an improvement from the £665k reported in Quarter 1. The
report also details the Council's borrowing which stood at £258m and
investments at £69m.

Risk Management — Corporate Risk Register Update

This report updates councillors on the position of the council's Corporate
Risk Register. The main updates are as follows:

e CR4 - Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from cyber attack
— The score of this risk has been updated;

e CR14 — Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health protection —
The risk has been updated and consideration will be given in the next
quarter to its continuation as a Corporate Risk

e No new risks were added,;

e No risks were removed during the quarter.

Material updates to the risks are summarised at section 8.

Appointment of Independent co-opted members to Audit &
Governance (A&G) Committee

Although not a legislative requirement, best practice and a ‘2022 position
statement’ by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA) endorsed by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities recommend that audit committees in local government should
include at least two co-opted independent members.

Previous BCP Council Audit & Governance (A&G) Committee and Council
meetings agreed the in-principle decision to recruit two co-opted
independent members to the BCP Council A&G Committee.

A number of local decisions were agreed which enabled a suitable
recruitment process, through open advertisement, to the BCP Council A&G
Committee.

The recommendations in this report endorse then approve the decisions

31-40

41 -76

77-82



10.

11.

12.

made by the selection and recruitment panel, which was Councillors
Andrews, Herrett and Chapmanlaw respectively.

Full Council need to approve the appointment of co-opted members to a
BCP Council committee.

Governance of Corporate Health & Safety and Fire Safety

This report details progress made on the delivery of Health & Safety and
Fire Safety governance arrangements for BCP Council and highlights:

e Implementation of the Governance framework continues to be
embedded and is working effectively.

e Reporting to the Health and Safety and Fire Safety Board continues on a
guarterly basis and has generally good attendance.

e Some operational service issues have arisen, including HSE
improvement notices, these have been successfully resolved.

The Corporate H&S Team is currently one FTE advisor short of full
establishment.

Emergency planning and business continuity annual update

Emergency planning and business continuity are statutory duties for BCP
Council. Activity over the reporting period has been about continuing to
build capability and put plans in place in line with higher risks, local and
national learning, and nationally-driven priorities and workstreams such as
planning for a national power outage. This report sets out the activities
undertaken to achieve this and also highlights the challenges arising.

Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter, 2023/24, Audit Plan Update

This report details progress made on delivery of the 2023/24 Audit Plan
for the period July to September (inclusive) 2023. The report highlights
that:

e 4 audit assignments have been finalised, including 1 ‘Partial’, 2
‘Reasonable’ and 1 ‘Consultancy’ audit opinions;

e 27 audit assignments are in progress, including 7 at draft report stage;

e £12.7M of grant expenditure has been certified, as required by the
issuing Government department, as meeting grant conditions;

e Internal Audit issued a report on seafront pop-up activity, incorporating
‘Bayside’ restaurant making 18 recommendations. The Director of
Commercial Operations has led on implementing recommendations
and has finalised other investigatory work.

e For a breach of Financial Regulation, previously reported to this
Committee, an investigation has concluded and the Director of
Commercial Operations has taken action in line with the disciplinary
policy and procedures;

e Three apprentices have been successfully recruited, however, the
resignation of an auditor means that there will be further impact on the
delivery of the audit plan;

6 ‘High’ priority audit recommendations have not been implemented by the
original target date. Explanations from respective Directors appear
reasonable and revised target dates have been agreed.

83-90

91-100

101 - 162



[NOTE: Should the Committee wish to discuss the detail within the Confidential
Appendix of this report, the meeting will be required to move into Confidential
(Exempt) Session]

13. Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work and 163-178
Whistleblowing Referrals 2022/23

This report details counter fraud work carried out by Internal Audit to
provide assurance on the Council’'s response to combating fraud and
corruption.

Internal Audit have investigated all allegations of suspected fraud or
financial irregularity in a proportionate manner.

Six formal whistleblowing referrals for the Council were received and
investigated by Internal Audit during 2022/23.

[NOTE: Should the Committee wish to discuss the detail within the
Confidential Appendix of this report, the meeting will be required to move
into Confidential (Exempt) Session]

14. Forward Plan - Refresh for the 2023/24 municipal year 179-182

This report sets out the list of reports to be considered by the Audit &
Governance Committee for the 2023/24 municipal year in order to enable it
to fulfil its terms of reference.

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



Agenda ltem 4

- 1-
BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting held on 07 September 2023 at 6.00 pm

Present:-
Clir M Andrews — Chairman
Clir E Connolly — Vice-Chairman

Present: Clir J Beesley, ClIr B Castle, Clir A Chapmanlaw, Clir R Herrett,
Clir M Phipps and Clir C Weight

Also in Clir M Cox

attendance:

19. Apologies

There were no apologies for absence on this occasion.

20. Substitute Members

There were no appointed substitutes.

21. Declarations of Interests

Councillor J Beesley declared an interest in Minute No. XX (External Audit
— Auditor's Annual Report 2021/22 & 2022/23 (Value for money
arrangements report)). Councillor Beesley remained present and made the
following statement.

For transparency, at item 6 on the agenda, the External Auditor has
referenced a property owned by a client of mine in his report, although it is
not a matter in which | am involved for my client.’

22. Confirmation of Minutes

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 July 2023 be
confirmed as a correct record.

23. Public Issues

Members were advised that there had been no statements or petitions
submitted on this occasion but that two questions had been received from a
member of the public.

Question from Alex McKinstry

The report on the Constitution, which backdrops ltem 7 on tonight's agenda,
looks at rebranding the Corporate and Community O & S Committee,
renaming it "the Overview and Scrutiny Board" and increasing its meetings
from five to ten in any municipal year. So we are told on page 81 of tonight's
reports pack (paragraph 16, third bullet point). But then, in the "proposed

7



24.

—2_
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
07 September 2023

model" on page 88 and in the proposed rewording of the Constitution,
Article 6.3.1(a), we are told that meetings will increase to twelve in any
municipal year. Can the Chair confirm which is the correct proposed figure -
ten or twelve?

Response by the Chair of Audit and Governance Committee,
Councillor Andrews

Thank you for question Mr McKinstry. | can confirm that the reference to ten
meetings in paragraph 16 to this report is incorrect and that this should read
twelve meetings, in line with the remainder of the report.

Question from Alex McKinstry

The same report states that the cost of additional meetings of the Overview
and Scrutiny Board, excluding any increase in the Chair's SRA, would be
£14,700 per year. But then in paragraph 27 we read that "if the wider
changes to committees are introduced", the additional costs would rise to
something like £56,000 per year. 'm assuming - though correct me if I'm
wrong - that these "wider changes to committees” comprise the proposed
changes to the Planning Committee, community engagement, models of
governance and Traffic Regulation Order decision-making, all alluded to in
paragraph 11 of the report. Can the Chair confirm whether this is correct
and can we also have a description of what changes are being considered
for these other committees and processes, as this is the first I've heard of
them?

Response by the Chair of Audit and Governance Committee,
Councillor Andrews

Thank you again for your question Mr McKinstry. The additional costs
highlighted in paragraph 27 would support the potential changes to the
Planning Committee and traffic regulation order decision-making
arrangements. The details of these arrangements have not yet been
determined and do not form part of these papers. It would not be
appropriate to speculate at this stage on these matters but | can advise that
it is the intention that a separate report will be brought to this committee in
November for consideration.

External Audit - Auditor's Annual Report 2021/22 & 2022/23 (Value for
money arrangements report)

The Chairman introduced the report, a copy of which had been circulated to
each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these
Minutes in the Minute Book.

Following the introduction from the Chairman the External Auditor provided
further background.

Members were advised that the External Auditor, Grant Thornton for BCP
Council, is required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness its use of
resources.

In relation to this Members were advised that auditors are required to report
their commentary under specific criteria, namely financial sustainability,

8



—-3-=
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
07 September 2023

governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. They are
required to report on any significant weaknesses they identify.

Members were informed that the External Auditor had produced a 2021/22
and 2022/23 Annual Report which had identified the following weaknesses:

Criteria Risk assessment
Financial Risks identified relate in the main due to
sustainability uncertainties in relation to the Councils Medium

Term Financial Plans and associated
transformation programme and delivery of
savings.

Governance Significant risks identified in Governance in
relotion to leadership, partnerships and the
Transformation programme

Improving Risk identified because of the inadequate rating
economy, issued by Ofsted in respect of children in care
efficiency and

effectiveness

Five significant weaknesses have been identified and have resulted in 5
key recommendations being made.

A further 13 improvement recommendations have been made. The Council
has provided the External Auditor with management responses to all the
recommendations.

The External Auditor has made a contextual comment that the May 2023
election has resulted in a change of political administration and an apparent
change in financial strategy which will set a new tone from the top and will
be an opportunity to address some of the issue raised in their report.

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee discussed the report
specifically around the identified weaknesses and the proposed
improvements.

RESOLVED that: -

(@ the findings, recommendations and management comments in
relation to the External Auditor’'s Annual Report 2021/22 and
2022/23 (Value for Money arrangements report) were noted; and

(b)  the unusual approach of reporting both the 2021/22 and 2022/23
years as an agreed pragmatic approach to resolve and ‘catch-
up’ on recent historic delays within the external audit process
was noted.

Voting: Unanimous



25.

—4-
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
07 September 2023

Review of the Council's Constitution - Recommendations of the Constitution
Review Working Group

The Head of Democratic Services presented a report, a copy of which had
been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix
'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book.

Members were requested to discuss the issues considered by the
Constitution Review Working Group and the series of recommendations
which had arisen.

In relation to this Members were advised that the recommendations
included the proposed changes to the overview and scrutiny arrangements.

Further to this Members were informed that any recommendations arising
from the Committee shall be referred to full Council for adoption.

Following the introduction, the Chair of the Constitution Working Group,
Councillor Margaret Phipps highlighted the main areas of discussion raised
by the Working Group and in proposing the recommendations set out within
the report proposed an additional recommendation (a)(ii) as follows: -

(@)(ii)) subject to approval of a(i) above, authority to agree the calendar of
meeting dates for the Overview and Scrutiny Board for the remainder
of 2023/2024 be delegated by Council to the Overview and Scrutiny
Board.

The Committee discussed the recommendations in detail and in relation to
this requested that each of the recommendations be discussed and voted
on separately.

In relation to recommendation (c) Members stressed that the presumption
was still against the altering of meetings but that the proposal sought to
clarify when it may be appropriate to alter the date, time or venue of a
meeting of council and the process to be followed.

RESOLVED that: -

(@ () in relation to Issue 1 (Overview and Scrutiny Structure and
Arrangements) the proposed amendments to Parts 2, 3, 4
and 7, as set out in Appendix 3 to this report, be approved
with an implementation date of 29 September 2023;

(ii) subject to approval of a(i) above, authority to agree the
calendar of meeting dates for the Overview and Scrutiny
Board for the remainder of 2023/2024 be delegated by
Council to the Overview and Scrutiny Board.

(b) in relation to Issue 2 (salary Sacrifice Scheme for Councillors): -

(i) the proposed amendmentto insert anew Section 8 into Part 7
(Scheme of Members' Allowances), as set out in paragraph 35
to this report, be approved,;

(i) the Chief Executive be delegated authority to determine from
time-to-time which benefit schemes are to be made available
to councillors;

10



—5-—
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
07 September 2023

(c) in relation to Issue 3 (Schedule of Council Meetings — Change of
Date, Time and Venue), the amendment to Part 4D, Procedure Rule
1, as set out in paragraph 39 to this report, be approved; and

(d) any necessary and consequential technical and formatting related
updates and revisions to the Constitution be made by the
Monitoring Officer in accordance with the powers delegated.

Voting: (a) — (d) Unanimous

The meeting ended at 7.20 pm
CHAIRMAN

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



Agenda ltem 6

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject External Auditor — Audit Progress & Sector Update
Meeting date 26 October 2023
Status Public Report

Executive summary Grant Thornton, as the Council’s appointed External Auditors, have
produced a report (Appendix A) which provides an update to Audit
& Governance Committee on their progress to date in delivering
their responsibilities.

The report includes an update on their 2021/22 audit work. Key
points of note are:

e Financial Statements Audit 2021/22 — Grant Thornton
are aiming to present a draft Audit Findings Report for
2021/22 to the November meeting of the Audit &
Governance Committee and issue their opinion by the end
of November 2023.

e Value for Money 2021/22 & 2022/23 — Regular meetings
have been set up with the Chief Executive, Director of
Finance and Cabinet Portfolio holder responsible for
finance to discuss progress against the recommendations
made in their Auditor’s Annual Reports for 2021/22 and
2022/23, as well as other recent external reports and
emerging issues.

The report also includes a summary of emerging national issues
and developments that may be relevant to the Council.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

Audit & Governance Committee notes the External Auditor’s
progress to date in delivering their responsibilities and the
sector update provided.

Reason for To update Audit & Governance Committee on the External
recommendations Auditor’s progress to date in delivering their responsibilities .

To advise Audit & Governance Committee of emerging national
issues and developments that maybe relevant to the Council.

Portfolio Holder(s): Clir Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance

Corporate Director lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources

13




Report Authors Nigel Stannard

Head of Audit & Management Assurance
201202 128784
[=7 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Wards Council-wide
Classification For Information
Background
1. During 2017, Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) awarded contracts for audit

for a five-year period beginning on 1 April 2018. Grant Thornton are the appointed
External Auditors for Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council.

Grant Thornton, as the Council’'s External Auditors, have a responsibility to provide
regular updates to those charged with governance (Audit & Governance Committee)
on progress made in delivering their responsibilities.

External Audit Progress Report

5.

Progress as at October 2023

The attached report (Appendix A) details progress made by Grant Thornton in
delivering their responsibilities as external auditors.

The report includes an update on the following areas for their 2021/22 work, in
summary:

¢ Financial Statements Audit 2021/22 — Grant Thornton are aiming to
present a draft Audit Findings Report for 2021/22 to the November meeting
of the Audit & Governance Committee and issue their opinion by the end of
November 2023.

e Value for Money 2021/22 & 2022/23 — Regular meetings have been set up
with the Chief Executive, Director of Finance and Cabinet Portfolio holder
responsible for finance to discuss progress against the recommendations
made in their Auditor’s Annual Reports for 2021/22 and 2022/23, as well as
other recent external reports and emerging issues.

Sector Update

The report also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments
that may be relevant to the Council (as a local authority) which includes:

e About time? Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of audited local
authority accounts — Grant Thornton

e Local government procurement and contract management: Lessons learned -
Grant Thornton

e SEND deficits kept off budgets for another three years — Grant Thornton
e Stonewall Gold Employer: Grant Thornton’s LGBTQIA+ inclusion journey

e Sustainability: Finance at the heart of decision making - CIPFA

14




Options Appraisal

6. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report.

Summary of financial implications
7. The proposed 2021/22 BCP Council Audit fee is £213,875.

Summary of legal implications
8. There are no direct legal implications from this report.

Summary of human resources implications

9. There are no direct human resources implications from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

10. There are no sustainability impact implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

11. There are public health implications from this report.

Summary of equality implications

12. There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment
13. There are no risk implications from this information report.

Background papers

None

Appendices

Appendix A — Grant Thornton — BCP Council — External Audit Progress Report and
Sector Update

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



o Grant Thornton

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
Council

External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
P
2021/22 & 2022/23

L
=
16 October 2023 —— St 1% g BT O )
T — o 5 N IR AN e
- = = i H : < ¥ . \ |
’ ! . y'se AR
" 4
£ 1 L
.




8T

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Introduction

Progress at October 2023
Audit Deliverables

Sector Update

Page

o~ O1 F

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. Itis
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Authority or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



6T

Introduction

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Peter Barber

Key Audit Partner

T 0117 305 7897

E Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Katie Whybray

Senior Manager

T 0117 305 7601

E Katie.V.Whybray@uk.gt.com

George Amos

In-charge Auditor

T 0117 305 7780

E George WM.Amos@uk.gt.com

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a report on
progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

The paper also includes:

* asummary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as
a local authority; and

* includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the
Committee may wish to consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal
questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our
website, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can
download copies of our publications https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-
sector-services/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with
Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/

0¢

Commercial in confidence

Progress as at October 2023

2021/22 Financial Statements Audit

Our 2020/21 financial statements audit was not concluded until March
2023. As reported in our 2020/21 Audit Findings Report, we identified scope
to significantly improve the quality and timeliness of supporting working
papers.

Following discussions with finance officers it was agreed to defer the
2021/22 post-statements financial statements audit to July 2023 to allow
finance officers to undertake a further quality assurance process on the
draft 2021/22 financial statements.

The Council revisited the draft statements for 2021/22 and undertook a
number of adjustments to these given the issues reported as part of the
prior year audit. We are therefore auditing the updated accounts and will
report any changes from version 1to version 2 of the accounts made by
management as part of our reporting.

Our 2021/22 post-statements audit is now back underway and is
progressing well. Whilst issues and errors are still being identified the
direction of travel is a positive one, with less issues arising to date than
previous years. We have also noticed a marked improvement in the
timeliness of responses, which is much appreciated.

We are currently aiming to present a draft Audit Findings Report for
2021/22 to the November meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee
and issue our opinion by the end of November 2023.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2021/22 & 2022/23 Value for Money (VEM]

Our Auditor’s Annual Report for 2021/22 and 2022/283, summarising
the findings from our VFM work at the Council, was presented to the
Audit and Governance Committee in September 2023. This report
included a number of key recommendations as well as a large number
of improvement recommendations, a significant number of which were
also reflected in the independent external assurance review presented
to the Council’s Cabinet in September 2023.

Given the significant of the issues identified within the VFM report, we
have set up regular meetings with the Chief Executive, Director of
Finance and Cabinet Portfolio holder responsible for finance to
discuss progress against our recommendations as well as other recent
external reports and emerging issues.



TZ

Audit Deliverables

Commercial in confidence

2021/22 Deliverables Planned Date Status
Audit Plan October 2022 Complete
We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit and Governance Committee setting out our proposed

approach in order to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2022/23 financial statements and to issue a commentary

on the Authority's value for money arrangements in the Auditor's Annual Report

Audit Findings Report November 2023 Not yet due
The initial Audit Findings Report will be reported to the November Audit Committee.

Auditors Report November 2023 Not yet due
This includes the opinion on your financial statements.

Auditor’s Annual Report September 2023 Complete

This report communicates the key outputs of the audit, including our commentary on the Authority's value for
money arrangements.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



44

Sector Update

Authorities continue to try to achieve greater efficiency in
the delivery of public services, whilst facing the challenges
to address rising demand, ongoing budget pressures and
social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date
summary of emerging national issues and developments to
support you. We cover areas which may have an impact on
your organisation, the wider local government sector and
the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the
detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and
find out more.

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake
research on service and technical issues. We will bring you
the latest research publications in this update. We also
include areas of potential interest to start conversations
within the organisation and with audit committee members,
as well as any accounting and regulatory updates.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

e Grant Thornton Publications

* Insights from local government sector
specialists

* Reports of interest

¢ Accounting and regulatory updates

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and
local government sections on the Grant Thornton website by
clicking on the logos below:

Local

Public Sector
government



http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/

€c

Commercial in confidence

Delayed publication of audited local
authority accounts

@
In December 2022 there were over 600 local audit opinions outstanding. This means that many AbOUt tlme?
stakeholders can't rely on audited accounts to inform decision making - a significant risk for

governance and control.

Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of

Local authority accounts are becoming increasingly complex as accounting standards evolve and  audited local autherity accounts
local authorities enter more and more innovative financing arrangements and income generation
projects. A significant challenge in managing local audits is the differing needs of various

stakeholders. The local government sector, central government and regulators need to agree on
the purpose of local audit and find a consensus on improving efficiency in publishing accounts.
Grant Thornton has produced a report that explore the reasons for delayed publication of audited

local authority accounts.

Table 1 below illustrates the declining performance against the target date for publication of

audited accounts in recent years.

Table 1 Audited accounts published by target date over the last six years

March 2023

Financial ~ Deadline for publication  Target date for % audited accounts % audited accounts
year of unaudited accounts publication of audited published by target date  published by target date
accounts (all firms average) (Grant Thornton audits)

2016/17 30 June 2017 30 September 2017 75 97

2017/18 31 May 2018 31 July 2018 87 91

2018/19 31 May 2019 31 July 2019 b8 ]

2019/20 1 September 2020 30 November 2020 45 bl

2020/21 1 August 2021 30 September 2021 ? 12

2021/22 1 August 2022 30 November 2022 12 20

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.




144

Commercial in confidence

Delayed publication of audited local

authority accounts

What more can be done?

All key stakeholders in the local audit system will need to continue their
efforts to secure improvement and a return to high levels of compliance with
timely publication of audited accounts. The report explores several of the
causes of delay and steps which might be taken to reduce the incidence of
delays.

These steps relate to systems leadership, holding both authorities and
auditors to account for their performance, a continued focus on the quality
of accounts preparation and audit, and the effective engagement between
auditors and audited bodies.

The report makes 20 recommendations for improving timeliness in publishing

audited accounts.

The report also sets out a checklist which management and the audit
committee should consider. The report recommends DLUHC, CIPFA or the
FRC set out expectations for the system as a whole.

Click here for full report

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

About time?

Exploring the reasons for delayed publication of
audited local authority accounts



https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf

14

Commercial in confidence

Local government procurement and
contract management-

Background More than a third of all UK government spending on goods and services is
Local authorities in England spend around £82.4 billion a year on goods spent by local government, so it’s important councils have effective
and services. More than a third of all UK government spending on goods arrangements for procurement and contract management

and services is spent in the local government sectorl. Allowing for capital

spending as well, the UK public sector procures around £300 billion a year
overall. Public spending on goods and services, £ billions - Goods, services and other expenditure by segment*
analysis by segment and department?

UK public spending

4%

public corporations

We reviewed a large number of reports, inspections and interventions
issued by a number of firms, including 53 Annual Auditor Reports issued by
Grant Thornton UK LLP. To help build on existing good practice, in this report
we highlight some common themes for members and officers to consider:

This report considers a selection of issues we identified under each theme 0 .

. . . partment of Health and Social
and makes recommendations both to local authorities and, in one case, to Care, 66.1 36%
central government. The report presents a good practice checklist for local
authority members and officers to reflect on.

Purchase of goods,
services and other

local expenditure by
government
PCs, government sector

§G. 6.7 6.0

The analysis sets out five key themes for ensuring good practice: M

i 38 a7

DT,  |BBC, Dk

*Strategic planning

59%

*Internal control local government, [ LERTEE

. . . 824 Defance, 16.9 all ather central governmant
*Time, technical expertise, and people R depclrtme-nts,incgluding
. PCs Other Public Corporations  AC Academies Dapartmant of Health and
*Commercial awareness DIT  Departmentfor Transport  MoJ Ministry of Justice Social Care
WG Woelsh Government BBC British Broodcasting
oContrOC't mOnOgement HO  Home Office Carporation
DfE  Departmentof Education  BEIS Department of Business,
SG  Scottish Government Industry Strategy
fu | | repo rt h ere 1 HM Treasuny, Whole of Government Accounts: year ended 31 March 2020, June 2022

2 Cabinet Office, Transforming Public Procurement: Government response to consultation, December 2021
3 HM Treasury, Whole of Govemment Accounts: year ended 31 March 2020, June 2022
L HM Treasuny, Whale of Govemment Accounts: year ended 31 March 2020, June 2022

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/local-government-procurement-and-contract-management-lessons-learned/

9¢

Commercial in confidence

SEND deficits kept off budgets for another
three years

The government has allowed councils to keep deficits on spending for children with special educational needs and disabilities off their balance
sheets for a further three years.

The government’s local government finance policy statement published on 12th December 2022 says that the statutory override for the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG] will be extended for the next three years, from 2023-24 to 2025-26.

Councils use the high needs funding block of the DSG to fund Send provision. But for many authorities, the cost of this has been outstripping the
amounts provided by tens of millions of pounds, leading to a total deficit estimated at more than £2bn.

The statutory override means that any DSG deficits are not included in council’s main revenue budgets. Before today's announcement, it had been
due to expire in 2023. Last year, Matt Dunkley, chair of the Association of Directors of Children’s Services’ resources and sustainability policy
committee, said: “We think the cumulative high needs block deficits of local authorities are approximately £2.3bn.”

In June, the government launched the £85m Delivering Better Value in Send programme, that involves specialist advisors probing 55 councils’
financial data to try and cut their DSG deficits. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, a partner in the programme, said the
scheme would provide “project management, change management and financial modelling capacity™.

The programme is running alongside the Department for Education’s ‘safety valve’ support scheme that offers bailouts for the councils with the
largest Send spending deficits, in return for them implementing stringent reforms.

About 40 councils are expected to receive safety valve funding, meaning that the two programmes together will include about two thirds of councils
with responsibility for Send. Also in June, the then children’s minister Will Quince wrote a letter to council chief executives warning that a “significant
number of councils are “running services that are not sustainable, and instead jeopardise the longevity of that crucial support”.

' Grant Thornton CI PFA\

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



https://www.lgcplus.com/finance/exclusive-call-to-write-off-two-to-three-billion-send-deficit-26-10-2021/
https://www.lgcplus.com/services/children/unsustainable-send-services-cannot-continue-as-finance-probe-begins-24-06-2022/
https://www.lgcplus.com/services/children/exclusive-almost-two-thirds-of-send-services-expected-to-get-deficit-support-27-09-2022/

L

Commercial in confidence

Stonewall Gold Employer: GT’s LGBTQIA+ inclusion
journey

Background

16 Feb 2023, Stonewall, Europe’s largest charity for Lesbian, Gay, Bi, Trans, and Queer (LGBTOIA+] rights, launched its widely anticipated Top 100
Employers List - recognising us for our work in supporting LGBTOIA+ colleagues to be the best versions of themselves at work and awarding us Gold
Employer, the highest award.

We're proud to announce that we've ranked among the UK’s leading employers from the public, private, and third sectors in the Stonewall Workplace
Equality Index (WEI). We’ve also been recognised as a Gold Employer. Overall, we’ve ranked 38th in the latest WEI results, and 26th in the private sector,
and %th in the financial services sector.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 11


https://www.stonewall.org.uk/

8¢

Commercial in confidence

Sustainability: Finance at the heart of decision
making

In November 2022 CIPFA published an article on public sector specific response to climate change. Below is an extract from CIPFA’s website:

“Role of the finance profession

Finance and accounting professionals need to move beyond simply measuring and reporting the impact of climate change, environmental regulation, supply chain
pressure and rising energy costs. They must focus on understanding those implications and integrating them into financial management and business planning.
The ability to integrate climate risks into overall operational risks is a major challenge. The finance profession will need to be able to collect data from different
professions (scientists, valuation experts, biologists, meteorologists etc) and be able to understand but also challenge assumptions and projections. The
importance of effective communication to both internal and external stakeholders must not be underestimated. Climate reporting should result in decision
makers having all the information necessary to be effective, to measure progress and to hold those responsible to account.

Opportunities and risks must be identified and stress tested using various scenarios, including temperature rises of 2C and more. The impact of collapsed
ecosystems must not be ignored — from rising sea levels to food scarcity and the mass migration of people whose land is no longer inhabitable. We need honesty,
transparency and above all leadership to tackle the climate issues that exist and lie ahead.

Conclusion

The current focus on net zero emissions by 2050 misses the point that climate change is already happening. There is an urgent need for adaptation measures to
be introduced that allow the UK to live with higher temperatures, wetter winters and warmer, drier summers. At the moment we are severely under prepared.
This is a call for urgent action from government, both at central and local level. The IPCC recommended threshold of limiting temperature rises to 1.5C is set to
be broken. Temperature rises above 2.5C will mean ecosystems will collapse which will have severe repercussions on our society as a whole.

CIPFA and ICAEW share the view that the finance function has an important role to play in combating climate change. We would like to see the finance profession
taking the lead for the public sector in its efforts to tackle climate change”.

Click here for link to the article

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Grant Thornton CI PFA\



https://news.un.org/en/story/2022/10/1129912
https://news.un.org/en/story/2022/10/1129912
https://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-thinks/articles/sustainability-finance-at-the-heart-of-decision-making

6¢

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank

30



Agenda ltem 7

BCP

Council

Audit & Governance Committee

Report Subject

Treasury Management Monitoring update for Quarter 2
2023/24

Meeting date

26 October 2023

Status

Public

Executive summary

The report sets an economic update with a Quarter 2
performance for 2023/24 which forecasts an underspend of
£730k due to the increase in interest rates, an improvement
from the £665k reported in Quarter 1. The report also details the
Councils borrowing which stood at £258m and investments at
£69m.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Audit & Governance Committee:

1) note the reported activity of the Treasury Management
function for April to September 2023

Reasons for
recommendations

It is a requirement under the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management Code
of Practice that regular monitoring of the Treasury Management
function is reported to Members.

Council are required to approve any changes to the prudential

indicators based on a recommendation from the Audit &
Governance Committee.

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance

Corporate Director

lan O’'Donnrell, Interim Director of Corporate Resources

Service Director

Adam Richens - Chief Financial Officer

Classification

For information and recommendation

Report author

Matthew Filmer, Assistant Chief Financial Officer
2@ 01202 128503
(=7 matthew.filmer@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Background Detail

1. Treasury Management is defined as the management ofthe Council’s cash flows,
its borrowings and investments, the management of the associated risks and the
pursuit of the optimum performance or return consistent with those risks.

31



mailto:matthew.filmer@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

The Treasury Management function operates in accordance with The Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) ‘Treasury Management in
the Public Services’ Code of Practice (2011).

The Treasury Management function manages the Council's cash flow by
exercising effective cash management and ensuring that the bank balance is as
close to nil as possible. The objective is to ensure that bank charges are keptto
a minimum whilst maximising interest earned. A sound understanding of the
Council’s business and cash flow cycles enables funds to be managed efficiently.

This report considers the treasury management activities in relation to the
Treasury Management Strategy. Also included is a summary of the current
economic climate, an overview of the estimated performance of the treasury
function, an update on the borrowing strategy, investments and compliance with
prudential indicators.

EconomicBackground (Link Treasury Services)

5.

In August 2023, the Bank of England’'s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted
to raise the Bank Rate from 5.00% to 5.25%, a 15 year high. In a surprise move,
the following September meeting left the rate unchanged after the Bank of
England said price rises were slowing faster than expected.

The decision to freeze rates was after the latest UK inflation rate for August fell
to 6.7%, down from 6.8% in July. It is the third month in a row that the figure has
dropped. Most experts had expected inflation to increase due to a rise in the cost
of petrol and diesel, driven by higher oil prices. But a slowdown in rising food
prices and a drop in air fares and accommodation costs all helped drive the
overall rate of inflation lower.

7. The Bank also retained the hawkish guidance that rates will stay “sufficiently

restrictive for sufficiently long”. This narrative makes sense as the Bank of
England does not want the markets to decide that a peak in rates will be soon
followed by rate cuts, which would loosen financial conditions and undermine its
attempts to quash inflation. The language also gives the Bank of England the
flexibility to respond to new developments. A rebound in services inflation, another
surge in wage growth and/or a further leap in oil prices could conceivably force it
to raise rates at the next meeting on 2nd November, or even pause in November
and raise rates in December.

. The Bank of England will also now need to consider recent geopolitical risks which

are a fresh threat to the global economic recovery. Fears of a wider Middle East
conflict poses a risk of higher oil prices, and risks to both inflation and the growth
outlook.

32



Interest Rates

9.

Table 1 below, produced by the authority’s treasury consultants Link Asset
Services, sets out their current projection of interest rates over the medium term.

Table 1: Interest rate projection (Link Treasury Services)

Interest Rate Forecasts

Bank Rate Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24

Link 5 25% £ 00% 4.50%

Cap Econ 5 25% 5. 25% 5.25% 5 25% 5.258% 4. T5% 4.25% 3.75%
5Y PWLE RATE
Link 4. 90% 4. 70% 4.40%
Cap Econ 4.90% 4 80% 4 60%
10Y PWLE RATE
Link 4 80% 4.60% 4 40%
Cap Econ 4.70% 4.60% 4.50%
25Y PWLB RATE

5.10% 4 .90% 4, T0%
5.00% 4.90% 4. 80%

Treasury Management Performance 2023/24

10.

Table 2 below shows the overall treasury management position for 2023/24. The
current forecast is a surplus of £730k on interest receivable budgets reflecting
the increase in interest rates. An improvement from the Quarter 1 report which
forecasted £665k.

Table 2: Treasury Management performance 2023/24

Forecast Budget Variance
2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
£'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure
Interest Paid on Borrowings 3,483 3,483 -
Income
Investment Interest Received (4,130) (3,400) (730)
Total (647) 83 (730)
3

33




Borrowing

11. Table 3 below shows the closing level of borrowing for the Council’'s two loans
pool.

Table 3: Council Borrowings as at 30 September 2023

Balance as at General

\I/r;\iltlijaetl gggg Interest Rate 30 Sept 2023  Maturity Date  Fund Pool Hi%ggm Source
£'000 £'000
Short Term Borrowing
6,000 5.30% 6,000 05-Oct-2023 6,000 - City of Edinburgh Council
6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Long Term Borrowing
5,000 4.45% 5,000 24-Sep-2030 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.45% 5,000 24-Nov-2031 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.75% 5,000 24-Sep-2032 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.45% 5,000 24-Nov-2032 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.75% 5,000 24-Sep-2033 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.60% 5,000 23-Feb-2035 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 4.72% 5,000 22-Aug-2036 - 5,000 PWLB
5,000 2.80% 5,000 20-Jun-2041 5,000 - PWLB
5,000 2.80% 5,000 20-Jun-2041 5,000 - PWLB
10,000 1.83% 10,000 22-Jul-2046 10,000 - PWLB
2,500 6.75% 2,500 06-Mar-2056 - 2,500 PWLB
1,500 6.75% 1,500 13-Mar-2057 B 1,500 PWLB
1,500 5.88% 1,500 07-Mar-2058 - 1,500 PWLB
42,488 3.48% 42,488 28-Mar-2062 - 42,488 PWLB
43,908 3.48% 43,908 28-Mar-2062 - 43,908 PWLB
17,000 1.54% 17,000 17-May-2068 17,000 - PWLB
12,500 1.56% 12,500 16-Aug-2068 12,500 - PWLB
12,500 1.55% 12,500 16-Aug-2069 12,500 - PWLB
188,896 188,896 62,000 126,896
22,625 2.26% + RPI Annually 15,120 17-Oct-2039 15,120 - Prudential Assurance Co
49,000 2.83% 47,968 24-May-2068 47,968 - Phoenix Life Limited
266,521 257,984 131,088 126,896
4

34



Investments

12.

A full list of investments held by the authority as at 30 September 2023 is shown
in Table 4 below.

Table 4: Investment Summary as at 30 September 2023

Investments Maturity Date Principa‘IEAmount Interest %

Fixed Term Deposits
Goldman Sachs International Bank 17-Oct-2023 12,000,000 4.77%
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets 03-Nov-2023 10,000,000 5.00%
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets 17-Nov-2023 4,000,000 5.00%
Close Brothers 17-Nov-2023 10,000,000 5.00%
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets 01-Dec-2023 8,000,000 5.30%
Goldman Sachs International Bank 07-Dec-2023 11,500,000 5.25%
Standard Chartered Bank 16-Feb-2024 10,000,000 5.82%
Sub Total 65,500,000
Call Account
LGIM Sterling Liquidity Fund instant access 3,075,000 5.35%
Total 68,575,000

13. The Treasury Management function has achieved returns of 4.82% for the period

1 April 2023 to 30 September 2023 for its combined investment, in line with the
SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average) overnight rate of 4.72%.

Prudential Indicators and Member Training

14.

15.

The Treasury Management Prudential Code Indicators were set as part of the
2022/23 & 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy. It can be confirmed that all
indicators have been complied with during all of 2022/23 and the period 1 April
2022 to 30 September 2023.

Reporting to members is to be done quarterly. Specifically, the Chief Finance
Officer (CFO) is required to establish procedures to monitor and report
performance against all forward-looking prudential indicators at least quarterly.
The CFO is expected to establish a measurement and reporting process that
highlights significant actual or forecast deviations from the approved indicators.
However, monitoring of prudential indicators, including forecast debt and
investments, is not required to be taken to Full Council and should be reported

5

35



as part of the authority's integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet
monitoring;

16. Appendix 1 has been attached to this report showing the Council’'s new liability
benchmark treasury indicator to support the financing risk management of the
capital financing requirement.

17.  Given new members have joined the Audit & Governance Committee, full training
will be given with optional invites to all members. Possible dates will be sent out
after this meeting.

Compliance with Policy

18. The Treasury Management activities of the Council are regularly audited both
internally and externally to ensure compliance with the Council's Financial
Regulations. The recent internal audit in August 2022 rated the Treasury
Management function as “Reasonable” assurance which means that there is a
sound control framework which is designed to achieve the service objectives, with
key controls being consistently applied.

19. The Treasury Management Strategy requires that surplus funds are placed with
major financial institutions but that no more than 25% (AA- Rated Institutions) or
20% (A to A- Rated) of the investment holding is placed with any one major
financial institution at the time the investment takes place. It can be confirmed
that the Treasury Management Strategy has been complied with during all of
2022/23 and the period 1 April 2023 to 30 September 2023.

Summary of Financial/Resource Implications

20. Financial implications are as outlined within the report.

Summary of Legal Implications
21. There are no known legal implications.

Summary of Equalities and Diversity Impact

22. The Treasury Management activity does not directly impact on any of the services
provided by the Council or how those services are structured. The success of the
function will have animpact on the extent to which sufficient financial resources
are available to fund services to all members of the community.

Summary of Risk Assessment

23. The Treasury Management Policy seeks to consider and minimise various risks
encountered when investing surplus cash through the money markets. The aim
in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management is to
place a greater emphasis on the security and liquidity of funds rather than the
return gained on investments. The main perceived risks associated with treasury
management are discussed below.

CreditRisks

24. Risk that a counterparty will default, fully or partially, on an investment placed
with them. There were no counterparty defaults during the year to date, the
Council’s positionis that it will invest the majority of its cash in the main UK Banks

6

36



which are considered to be relatively risk adverse and have been heavily
protected by the UK Government over the last few years. The strategy is being
constantly monitored and may change if UK Bank Long Term ratings fall below
acceptable levels.

Liquidity Risks

25. Aims to ensure that the Council has sufficient cash available when it is needed.
This was actively managed throughout the year and there are no liquidity issues
to report.

Re-financing Risks

26. Managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments (borrowings) as and
when they mature. The Council continues to monitor premiums and discounts in
relation to redeeming debt early. Only if interest rates result in a discount that will
benefit the Council would early redemption be considered.

Interest Rate Risks

27. Exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. The
Council is protected from rate movements once a loan or investment is agreed
as the vast majority of transactions are secured at a fixed rate.

Price Risk

28. Relates to changes in the value of an investment due to variation in price. The
Council does not invest in Gilts or any other investments that would lead to a
reduction in the principal value repaid on maturity.

Backgroundpapers

29. Treasury Management report to Full Council on 22 February 2023
https://[democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5032/P ublic%20reports%20p
ack%2021st-Feb-2023%2019.01%20Council.pdf?T=10

Appendices
Appendix 1 — BCP Liability Benchmarking

37


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5032/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Feb-2023%2019.01%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5032/Public%20reports%20pack%2021st-Feb-2023%2019.01%20Council.pdf?T=10

This page is intentionally left blank

38



6€

Total Amount (£'000)

£450,000

£400,000

£350,000

£300,000

£250,000

£200,000

£150,000

£100,000

£50,000

£0

-£50,000

-£100,000

=== PWLB Loans

Short Term inc LA Temporary Borrowing (<1 year)

«==Net Loans Requirement - GF

Appendix 1 - Liability Benchmark - General Fund

= Market Loans (excl LOBO loans)

Variable rate loans

e==| 0ans CFR - GF

== | OBO Loans

e=mmFExisting Loan Debt Outstanding - GF

= = |jability Benchmark - GF



oy

Total Amount (£'000)

Appendix 1 - Liability Benchmark - HRA

£250,000
£200,000
~
~~
/ Ssao
-~
/ ..
\\
i ~~.
] ~
] <
[] S<
‘N
\ﬁ
~~o
~~e
£150,000 TS
] <
‘N
~~e
~
\N
~
\\
~
\\
\\
S
£100,000

S
A\ -~
-~
-
-
-
-
-~
-
-
-
-~
-
-~
~
~
-~
-~
-
-
S
~
£50,000

> o D oD o oV 2D o H R oD 6'\ N SV D > D S &> 'v FLES XD AV a> A0 40 A DO N‘»‘Bh‘) '\%%Q\'L'ﬁ

v ’L'bﬁ'b’b'h'b‘b o0 o O W $¥ hhb‘:’)‘)‘)‘)%‘)‘b S & FLE L FP OO QYA a™ (2 a0 O a® A oS S VP P RS SO
'9'19'»“'» '» 'u S q?'»"»“@m“@q?m '» P T o P PP '» N R R 2 '» DA PP
== PWLB Loans == Market Loans (exc LOBO loans) === | OBO Loans

Short Term inc LA Temporary Borrowing (<1 year) === Variable rate loans isting Loan Debt O ing - HRA

«==Net Loans Requirement - HRA === 0ans CFR - HRA = = Liability Benchmark - HRA



Agenda ltem 8

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Risk Management — Corporate Risk Register Update
Meeting date 26 October 2023
Status Public Report

Executive summary This report updates councillors on the position of the council’'s
Corporate Risk Register. The main updates are as follows:

e CR4- Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from
cyber attack — The score of this risk has been updated;

e CR14 - Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health
protection — The risk has been updated and consideration will
be given in the next quarter to its continuation as a Corporate
Risk

¢ No new risks were added;

¢ No risks were removed during the quarter.

Material updates to the risks are summarised at section 8.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee note the
update provided in this report relating to corporate risks.

Reason for To provide assurance that corporate risks are being managed

recommendations effectively and continue the development of the council’s
arrangements for Risk Management and enhance its governance
framework.

41



Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance

Corporate Director Graham Farrant, Chief Executive

Report Authors Fiona Manton

Risk & Insurance Manager
@01202 127055
flona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Wards Council-wide
Classification For Update and Information
Background

1. Risk canbe broadly defined as the possibility that an action, issue or activity (including
inaction) will lead to a loss or an undesirable outcome. It follows that Risk Management is
about the identification, assessment and prioritisation of risks followed by co-ordinated
control of the probability and impact of that risk.

2. In accordance with the Financial Regulations and the Risk Management Policy, the Audit
and Governance Committee are specifically responsible for ensuring appropriate and
effective risk management processes. In practice, this means that the committee members
must assure themselves that the council’'s Risk Management framework is appropriate and
operating effectively. The council’'s Corporate Risk Register is an important element of this
framework and is reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis.

3. In line with the decision-making framework in place for BCP Council it was agreed that
effective from day one BCP Council would, as an interim measure, adopt the legacy
Bournemouth Risk Management framework. The scoring matrix in this framework was
adjusted to reflect the increased remit of the new authority.

4. In addition to the quarterly reviews, in immediate practical terms, the Corporate
Management Board (CMB) continues to monitor risks and ensure appropriate and
proportionate mitigating actions continue and evolve as risks change.

Corporate Risk Review

5. Members will recall from the previous updates that the Corporate Risk Register was
established at the commencement of BCP Council. It has been routinely reviewed on a
quarterly basis.

6. Eachriskis given a unique identifying number so where risks have been removed from the
register the numbers will no longer run sequentially. To assist the committee a table of the
full risks is shown at the beginning of Appendix 1.

7. In order to consider the risks sitting just below corporate level, those risks considered as Key
Assurance Risks are reviewed. These include Information Governance, Emergency
Planning and Business Continuity and Health and Safety and Fire Safety.

Changes in Risk During Quarter 2 —2023/2024

8. During the gquarter, the risks on the risk register have been reviewed and in addition to the
updates to each risk, the material updates to the register are as follows:

42


mailto:fiona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

CR4 - Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from cyber attack — The risk has
been updated for the quarter and as part of this update the Net risk score has been
increased. This is reflective of the external environment and the reliance on systems.

CR14 — Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health protection — The risk has
been updated to reflect the current position. Consideration will be given during the next
guarter as to whether this needs to be re-framed around the continuity of health
projection statutory responsibilities or whether any residual risk can be managed at a
service level.

9. Whilstit may be noted that many of the risk scores have not changed, this is not reflective of
management action or inaction. Risks will continue to be influenced by a number of factors
including national impacts and operational environment changes. During each quarter risk
owners routinely review the allocated scores along with further discussion by CMB.

10. During this quarter in addition to the review of individual risks, the connectivity of risks
continues to be considered in relation to the Corporate Risk Register. CMB will continue to
be mindful of the accumulation of risk. New risk causes, such as inflation, may impact
across several risks and in turn compound the overall risk position for the council in a
negative way.

11. As part of the continuing development in terms of the reporting of risk registers, the format of
the report for this committee continues to include a section for each risk which outlines the
link to the relevant Corporate Objective(s).

12. Full details of the updates for this quarter can be found in Appendix 1.
Changesin Risk Scores —last 12 months

13. In addition to the usual reporting of risk, information on the changes in risk scores was
requested for the last 12 months.

14. A summary document is included at Appendix 2 which provides details of each risk and the
tracking of the gross, net and target scores over the last 12 months.

15. As set out in paragraph 9 above, it is not unusual for risk scores not to change materially
due to both the nature of the risks and the significant number of factors that may determine
the scoring.

Dynamic Risk Review Process

16. Recognising the rapidly changing environment and the increasingly complex interaction
between some of the corporate risks, a standard agenda item has been added to CMB to
add a further layer to the risk review process.

17. This process allows for more dynamic consideration of the immediate responses required to
some of the corporate risks, which will help the Corporate Risk Register to be considered,
managed and communicated through the organisation.

18. The consideration of the risks in this way will also inform the regular quarterly reviews that
continue to take place in a more timely manner, by flagging changes in risk profile ahead of
the regular reviews with risk owners, which will continue to take place.

19. As the new Corporate Strategy Framework develops and moves forward the corporate risks
will be reviewed in the context of this framework and aligned to the updated Key Objectives.

Service Development

20. In addition to the reviews of corporate risks, the Risk Management Team continues to be
engaged in the refresh of service risk registers. This includes engaging with services to
understand their current risk arrangements, how these can be improved to deliver a
proactive and dynamic Risk Management environment and how the Risk Management

43



Team can support them in this to deliver a consistent and embedded approach to Risk
Management throughout the council. This work is progressing well.

21. As part of the role of the team, continuous “horizon scanning” is undertaken to identify
issues that may give rise to risk for the council. When matters are identified, these are
raised with the relevant Corporate/Service Director for review and consideration of any
necessary action. Examples during this quarter include:

e Routinely reviewing the outcomes of internal audit reports to raise risk issues with the
relevant service risk champion to ensure, if appropriate, they are suitably reflected
and captured in the service risk register;

¢ Circulating information from a risk management perspective on various topics
including legislative matters, construction regulations, Health and Safety Executive
statistics and other risk related issues;

e Sharing training opportunities on areas of risk.

Summary of financial implications

22. Financial implications relevant to risks are detailed within the relevant risk registers.

Summary of legal implications

23. There are no direct legal implications from this report.

Summary of human resources implications
24. There are no direct human resources implications from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

25. There are no direct sustainability implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

26. There are no direct Public Health implications from this report.

Summary of equality implications

27. There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

28. The risk management implications are set out within the content of this report.

Background papers

Risk Management — Corporate Risk Register Update Report to the Audit and Governance
Committee on 27 July 2023

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Corporate Risk Register Update Q2 — 2023/2024

Appendix 2 — Changes in Corporate Risk Scores

Appendix 3 - Risk CR4 - Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from cyber attack -
October 2023 Update - Mandatory ICT Training Completion Rates

44



Audit and Governance Committee —October 2023

Corporate Risk Register —Risk Table

Appendix 1

Risk Risk Title Risk Status

Ref

CR1 Failure to respond to the needs arising from a changing Risk removed Q4
demography. 2022

CR2 Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for Corporate Risk
children — Children & Communities

CR3 Failure to ensure adequate Information Governance —now Key | Risk removed Q2
Assurance — Information governance Board Risk 2020

CR4 Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from Corporate Risk
cyber attack

CR5 Failure to plan effectively for EU Transition Risk Removed Q2

2020

CR6 Failure to adequately respond to an incident involving the Risk Removed Q2
activation of the emergency plan— now Key Assurance — 2020
Resilience Governance Board Risk

CR7 Failure to provide adequate services as a result of an Risk Removed Q2
incident requiring a business continuity response— now Key 2020
Assurance — Resilience Governance Board

CRS8 Inability to run an election/referendum Risk Removed Q1

2023

CR9 Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the Corporate Risk
delivery of services

CR10 Failure to deliver effective health and safety to protect staff, Risk removed Q3
councillors including the public 2020

CR11 Ability of the council to function and operate efficiently in the Risk removed Q1
delivery of single services across the area of BCP 2023

CR12 Failure to achieve appropriate outcomes and quality of Corporate Risk
service for young people

CR13 Failure to deliver the transformation programme Corporate Risk

CR14 Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health Corporate Risk
protection

CR15 Effective people strategy Corporate Risk

CR16 Blank record

CR17 Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer Risk Removed Q3
arrangements are not managed 2022

CR18 Failure in customer interface Corporate Risk

CR19 Failure to determine planning applications within Corporate Risk
statutory timescales, or within agreed extensions of
time (EOT)

CR20 Adaptation and mitigation of the negative impacts of Corporate Risk
climate change including sealevel rises and weather
pattern changes on BCP’s communities

CR21 Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Corporate Risk
Council & increase in service requirements

CR22 Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand Corporate Risk

45




AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
October 2023

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE Q2 -2023/24

1.1 Mitigation actions and significant changes this quarter are detailed below.
1.2 The table below is a key to arrow directions in relation to individual risk scoring.

RISK DIRECTION OF TRAVEL STATUS

Risk impact or likelihood has increased since last review.

Risk impact or likelihood has decreased since last review.

| GRS

There is no change to the risk impact or likelihood

46



Risk CR2 - Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for children - CHILDREN &

COMMUNITIES
Risk Owner — Chief Executive

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Brighter Futures and Connected Communities

Risk Information
Corporate Context

Safeguarding is the responsibility of all members and corporate officers, and this is reflected in the
Corporate Safeguarding Strategy which was agreed by Cabinet in September 2019.

All relevant partners have worked across Children’s and Adults’ Safeguarding and Community Safety
Partnerships to establish effective governance arrangements post Local Government Review which
meet all required statutory requirements. As a relatively new council covering a population of 400,000,
BCP Council must ensure that it is working with all partners in the most effective way to identify, assess
and respond to safeguarding and community safety issues, particularly those which cut across
children’s, adults’ and community safety.

Children’s Directorate

The pan-Dorset Safeguarding Partnership is now working, and a BCP delivery arm is in place to link the
safeguarding partnership closer to the BCP operational safeguarding service.

+ BCP had a Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) inspection in June 2021 which
identified significant gaps in services which are being addressed through Written Statement of Action
(WSoA).

« BCP had an Ofsted ILACS (inspecting local authority children’s services) inspection Dec 2021 and
was rated inadequate.

Communities

Key consideration for the Communities directorate in discharging the range of duties provided across a
range of services; community safety and domestic abuse in particular.

Key Mitigations & Actions

Children’s Directorate

e Focus on the Children’s Services improvement journey and WSoA plan to ensure core services
are safer for vulnerable children and young people

e The strongest mitigation is to have the capacity to meet the rising demands of need across the
services and to have the assurance of the quality of practice through new governance processes

e There is a Children’s Services Improvement Board which is chaired by a Department for
Education (DfE) Advisor and the Board holds service, council and partners accountable for the
delivery of the improvement plan

e There is a SEND Improvement Board which is chaired by a DfE Advisor and the Board holds
service, council and partners accountable for the delivery of the improvement plan

e Thereis an Education Improvement Board which is chaired by the Director of Children’s
Services and the Board holds service, council and partners accountable for the delivery of the
improvement plan

o DfE support is being revised through the delivery of a Statutory Notice to Improve by the
Secretary of State and the participation in the Safety Valve programme

e BCP Children’s Services has had 3 Monitoring Visits by Ofsted all reporting improvements in
service delivery and the DfE Advisor reports cautious optimism on the improvements in the
service

e Sector Led Improvement Partner carries out Assurance Auditing as an independent review to
assure the service and DfE of the quality of practice

¢ A Quality Assurance Framework has been embedded into Children’s Social Care practice giving
the assurance that improvements are being made. Practice Learning Reviews (audits) now
evidence practice consistently at ‘requires improvement’ with an increasing number of ‘good’
demonstrated. Governance processes introduced in 2022 continue to review practice and give

47




increasing assurance that children are safeguarded. It is too early to remove this risk currently
from the corporate review.

Communities

e Safeguarding processes in place - working in partnership across the council and other key
agencies, particularly in regard to risks presented in high-risk domestic abuse cases

e All relevant staff are trained, and referral processes are clear

e The refreshed BCP Community Safety Partnership Board have five strategic groups:

o Domestic Abuse Strategic Group

o Violence Reduction Strategic Group

o Vulnerable Adult & Child Exploitation Group

o Safer Communities Strategic Group

o Reducing Harm from Substance Misuse Strategic Group

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target

Date for
Action

e The relevant actions for this risk are setout in the Children’s Services Improvement
Plan and the WSoA. Progress on delivery of the action is reported to a robustly March 2024
functioning Children’s Services Improvement Board, SEND Board and Education
Improvement Board

e Domestic Abuse Strategy approved and being implemented. Community Safety
Partnership refreshed and working well with clearly defined structure leads and
governance.

Quarter Update

The council has had 4 Ofsted monitoring visits to date. They have commented on progress being
made. Hampshire County Council is the Sector Led Improvement Partner commissioned by the DfE to
support children’s social care and they are supporting our route out of inadequate.

An inspection of the Pan Dorset Youth Justice Service rated this service as Good in September 2022.
Adult Education and Skills service has been Ofsted inspected and given a Good Rating.

The DfE Advisor in his second report about Children’s Social Care has lifted his RAG rating of service
from RED to AMBER stating that the increasing stability in the service and growing traction from senior
managers to the improvement is starting to give this assurance.

Written Statement of Action - Bedford is our Sector Led Improvement Partner supporting our
improvement work through the WSOA. DfE have delivered a Statutory Notice to Improve by the
Secretary of State and invited BCP to participate in the Safety Valve programme.

The DfE Advisor has now been commissioned to work on the SEND improvement agenda against the
Statutory Notice.

Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk | Risk Movement during Risk Strategy

Level (M hood | Score | Matrix Quarter
(8] (IxL)
Gross Score 4 4 16 -
Net Score 4 3 12 - Treat
Target Score 4 2 8 -

48




Risk CR4 - Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from cyber attack

Risk Owner — Director IT & IS

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Modern, Accessible, Accountable Council

Risk Information

BCP Council relies heavily on digital technology and online capability, including in the delivery of
essential and public-facing services.

The COVID-19 pandemic has emphasised BCP Council’s reliance on digital technologies, both through
personal communication and through the council’s ability to work remotely in support of the local and
national response.

While there are huge opportunities and benefits for the council by continuing to actively leverage
technology in support of the transformation agenda, our vulnerabilities become greater as we
increasingly rely on cyberspace.

A loss or disruption to IT systems, specifically those caused by cyber-attacks, can incapacitate essential
networks, for example, by encrypting or destroying data on which vital services depend. Such attacks
could cause a variety of real-world harm if services like Social Care, Housing or Place (Highways etc)
are impacted.

Financial loss is the most common impact through both direct loss of funds as well as recovery costs
and reputational impacts.

Public confidence may be affected if the council is not able to adequately protect its IT systems and
networks against loss or disruption, whether caused accidentally or intentionally.

The UK had the highest number of cybercrime victims per million internet users at 4783 in 2022 — up
40% over 2020 figures.

Key Mitigations & Actions

* BCP Council has strong legacy IT infrastructure and work continues to migrate to a single BCP
core infrastructure — this has been greatly improved, for example, by the consolidation of the
local and wide area networks and move to a single datacentre in 2022.

* Physical premises security improved through co-locating to a single datacentre.

« Physical data security improved through co-locating to a single datacentre.

* Now utilizing a common central Security Information & Event Management solution.

» Strong encryption enforced on all end-user devices.

* Regular scanning of devices and IT infrastructure alerts us to new threats and vectors.

* Regular patching and upgrades of all supported key systems.

» Dedicated cyber security officers (2).

* Monthly review of key metrics held at board level within IT&IS.

+ Mandatory bitesize training provided to ALL staff monthly. Completion levels are low, however
(see “Near Future Key Actions” section).

* Multi Factor Authentication enforced to protect data at rest within the council’s Microsoft365
environment.

* NCSC (National Cyber Security Centre) recommended password complexity/length criteria
introduced to ensure good practice by end-users.

» Restrictions on ability to transfer data out of council applications/datasets to non-secure
applications when being accessed through personal devices.

» Utilising appropriate IT resiliency where cost-effective to do so. For example, keys system
(D365) hosted in BCP Council’s virtual datacentres (Azure) are replicated across two regionally
separate datacentres in London and Cardiff.

* The move to Microsoft365 itself has provided much needed additional data resiliency. Providing
staff with much more agile, secure access to data held within the ecosystem (Teams, OneDrive,
SharePoint).

49




Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months)

As we fundamentally redesign and transition the enterprise architecture in

partnership with our Strategic Implementation Partner (SIP), we will continue to
ensure that the infrastructure is built to leading-edge security standards and that

appropriate resiliency is applied where cost effective to do so.

User Training will be a priority over the next 3-6 months. The weakest link in a
layered security posture is the end-user. This is especially true when staff are busy or

rushed, often leading to mistakes or lapses of otherwise good judgement.

Currently staff completion rates are low across the entire council for all previously
published mandatory courses (see below), with even the most adopted course still
only at 50% completion rate.

Activity is therefore underway to target specifically those who have not completed

these short-form courses to drive up these rates.

October 2023 Update - Completion rates are on an upward trend, however, focus is
still required on improving uptake significantly. Please see Appendix 3 for completion

rate statistics.

Target Date
for Action

1 April 2024

Quarter Update

As described above, end-user training remains a key focus with the provision of bite-sized training on
the most common and pervasive threats. Despite being well received by many, the course completion
rate is still lower than would be liked and therefore effort is currently underway to specifically target non-
compliant individuals and Line Managers are now receiving non-compliance reports directly delivered to

their mailbox.

The net risk score was reviewed during the quarter and the impact score has been increased due to the
external environment and reliance of systems.

Risk Scores

Assessment Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy

Level (M hood | Score | Matrix during

(L) (IxL) Quarter
Gross Score 4 4 16 a -
Net Score 4 3 12 t Treat
]

Target Score 3 2 6 e -

50




Risk CR9 - Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the delivery of services

Risk Owner — Director of Finance

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Modern, Accessible, Accountable Council

Risk Information

The Council has a legal responsibility to ensure it can balance its budget. As part of this framework, it is
not permitted to have negative reserves.

The 2023/24 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) covering the period to 31 March 2027
was approved by Council on 21 February 2023. There were three main aspects to this report.

A) 2022/23 Financial Year:
e Requirement to deliver a £10.6m surplus.
¢ Need to take all necessary steps to avoid drawing down on a capitalisation direction which
would enable the transformation investment programme and the Children’s services
improvement revenue expenditure to be financed by borrowing. Normally borrowing can only
be used to finance capital expenditure.

B) 2023/24 Financial Year budget was based on the following:

e 4.99% Council Tax increase (2.99% basic and 2% Social Care Precept) in line with the
maximum threshold for upper tier authorities.

e £34m of savings, efficiencies, increases to fees and charges, and service reductions.

e A £30m application of one-off reserves to under-pin the budget as approved (of which
£10.6m is being generated via the 2022/23 estimated outturn).

e £1.9m investment into unearmarked reserves to ensure they represent 5% of Net Revenue
Expenditure as a minimum in line with good practice.

C) 2024/25 Financial Year:

e The funding gap for 2024/25 is £44.4m excluding any previously assumed savings or
efficiencies. This is on the basis that the previously assumed savings were either unidentified
against a specific budget line of the council or the public had not been transparently made
aware of them or engaged as to their deliverability.

The February 2023 Budget report also highlighted that the council was predicting that it will have
negative reserves of £33m as at the 31 March 2024 due to the accumulating deficit on the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG) as pertaining to the growing annual deficit on the High Needs Block.

Key Mitigations & Actions

* Quarterly budget monitoring reports to Cabinet.

» Monthly budget monitoring information provided to budget holders.

» Regular meetings between Cabinet Members and Senior Officers in respect of the financial strategy
and the budget position.

* New Microsoft Dynamics Enterprise Resources System implemented in April 2023 to improve the
provision of financial management information underpinned by the principle of self-service.

* The 2023/24 approved budget agreed a recommendation to implement a control to strengthen
commissioning, procurement, and contract management arrangements in support of the delivery of
third party spend transformation savings.

+ Extension by government of the statutory override that allows the council to ignore the deficit on the
DSG up until 31 March 2026.

* BCP Council is taking part in a conversation with government around its DSG deficit as part of
considering if it could reach a “Safety Valve” agreement.

51




Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for

Action
a) MTFP Update Report November 2023
b) Q2 Budget monitoring report November 2023
c) MTFP Update Report December 2023

Update

The Council approved a budget for 2023/24 built in line with traditional and conventional approaches to
local government finance. The report and associated s25 statement of the Chief Finance Officer set out
the key financial risks which will need to be carefully and regularly monitored.

Updated activity from April 2023 onwards can be set out as follows.

Financial Outturn Report — July 2023 Cabinet:

e Required £10.6m surplus was achieved.

e Council managed to avoid the capitalisation direction in 2022/23 due to a combination of asset
sales and Children’s Services managing their improvement expenditure within their quarter 3
forecast.

¢ Part mitigation of the financial risk associated with the working capital loan facility advanced to
BCP FuturePlaces Ltd.

e DSG funding deficit as at the 31 March 2023 is £35.8m growing to £62.9m on 31 March 2024.
Overall position is that the council is now predicted to have negative reserves of circa £22m.

MTFP Update Report — July 2023 Cabinet:

e Budget timetable, process and financial strategy supporting the legal requirement to balance the
2024/25.

e Recommendation to Audit and Governance Committee to ask Council to reduce the debt
threshold to £755m from £1.334bn - approved by Council 12 September 2023.

e Recommendation to Council to dispose of assets which will enable 2024/25 revenue
transformation costs to be funded via the Flexible Use of Capital receipts - approved by Council
12 September 2023.

e Recommendation to Council to reduce the working capital loan facility to BCP FuturePlaces Ltd
to £6m (from £8m) - approved by Council 12 September 2023.

Budget Monitoring 2023-24 at Quarter One — September 2023 Cabinet:

e Forecasting delivery of its 2023/24 activity within the parameters of its original budget after
addressing residual unidentified transformation savings of £6.7m by the application of several
one-off corporate savings, efficiencies, and additional income.

¢ Emerging in-year service pressures of £4.4m in Operations (£3.4m) and Resources (E1m)
Directorates which require mitigation strategies to be presented as part of the Quarter 2 budget
monitoring report.

e Residential fees 5% higher than budget and home care market difficulties impacting on the Adult
Social Care budget and a potential pressure in the cost of care placements in Children’s
Services both of which may exert further in-year financial pressure.

e Approved the implementation of an expenditure freeze and vacancy management process for
the remainder of 2023/24 to support the 2023/24 required in-year mitigation strategies and the
balancing of the 2024/25 budget.

The Future of BCP FuturePlaces Ltd — September 2023 Cabinet:
e The closure of FuturePlaces company and the bringing in-house of the development and
investment activities of the company.

The quarter 2 budget monitoring report to November Cabinet will provide a key update regarding the
forecastimpact of the in-year mitigation strategies in Operations and Resources.

52




The MTFP Update report to November Cabinet will outline progress towards delivery of a balanced,

legal budget for 2024/25.

Risk Scores
Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
(L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 4 16 a -
Net Score 4 3 12 E - Treat
Target Score 4 2 8 E -

53




Risk CR12 — Failure to achieve appropriate outcomes and quality of service for young people

Risk Owner — Corporate Director of Children’s Services

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Brighter Futures and Connected Communities

Risk Information

Ofsted inspection of BCP Council's Children’s Services confirms the safety and quality of services is
inadequate which indicates significant risk of the service not providing safe or quality services to
children, young people and their families.

An improvement plan is in place which is being managed and supported by the newly revised
Improvement Board. Senior Leadership Team in Children’s Services, the Department for Education
(DfE), Chief Executive and Cabinet members are monitoring and enabling progress and keeping
accountable officers on task.

The likelihood is that demands on Children’s Services will increase more than predicted due to post-
covid impact and economic issues taking more families into poverty.

Key Mitigations & Actions

e Develop robust early help services to drive down demand for Children’s Social Care

e Development of further placements in-house and efficient commissioning activities to meet
needs

e Assessments and visiting happens within statutory requirements managed by Quality and

Performance structures

The quality of the casework is audited and supported to increase quality of work

Workloads are managed across the directorate to ensure caseload management

Improvement plan is managed at pace with partners

Workforce recruitment and retention strategy to be in place to build and stabilise the workforce

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date
for Action

¢ Improvement plan in place managed by the Improvement Board There is no

e The Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) action plan which also target date for
has an Improvement Board this risk as it

e Intensive work to achieve stronger staff engagement and support is considered

e Improvement programme supported by Hampshire County Council (rated a continuous
outstanding for children’s services) through the Sector Led Improvement intrinsic risk
Programme (SLIP)

Quarter Update

The council has had 4 Ofsted monitoring visits. They have commented on progress being made.
Hampshire County Council has been confirmed as the Sector-Led Parther commissioned by the DfE to
support Children’s Social Care and they are supporting our route out of inadequate.

Written Statement of Action (WSOA) - Bedford has agreed to be our Sector-Led Partner to support our
WSOA. DfE support is being revised through the delivery of a Statutory Notice to Improve by the
Secretary of State and the participation in the Safety Valve programme

The DfE Advisor has now been commissioned to work on the SEND improvement agenda against the
Statutory Notice.

54




Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk | Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
(L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 3 12 E -
Net Score 4 3 12 E - Threat
Target Score 4 2 8 E -

55




Risk CR13 - Failure to deliver the transformation programme

Risk Owner — Director IT & Programmes

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Modern, Accessible, Accountable Council

Risk Information

The future efficiency and effectiveness of the council, our reputation as a service provider and our ability to
continue to deliver a balanced financial position within the Medium Term Financial Plan horizon are
fundamentally linked to the delivery of our transformation objectives. Delivering a programme with the
complexity, scale and pace as set out by the council will be challenging on a number of levels including:
effectively engaging the organisation in the vision of the future; committing to the achievement of challenging
benefits realisation targets; ensuring the appropriate level of funding to support the resources required to
deliver the programme.

Key Mitigations & Actions

« Strong programme governance and engagement with key stakeholders during the design and
implementation of all required changes.

+ Identification of funding sources and the development of a Financial Strategy to support the
programme.

+ Clear identification and specification of our requirements while working with our Strategic
Implementation Partner.

* Robustand effective procurement process to identify and engage the right suppliers to support
application consolidation and service redesign.

+ Effective programme management and performance monitoring of the delivery.

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action
The programme, its governance architecture and all workstreams have completed 1 April 2024

vision and validate, construct and deploy has largely been completed for Dynamics
Finance & Operations (F&O), with the construct phase in action for Dynamics
Customer Engagement (CE). There is very strong coordination of all workstreams
and effective integration between the Strategic Implementation Partner and BCP
teams working across the programme. The benefits are being constantly reviewed
and reinforced across all aspects of the programme.

Quarter Update
Progress since April 2023:

The Data platform and Master Data Management software which forms part of the Data & Insights
technology is now live and beginning to be used across the council.

Implementation of Dynamics F&O which completely replaces our finance and human resources systems
with a single system is now live across the council with smaller releases planned later in the year. Change
management activity continues to engage and support all managers and budget holders across the council
in using and adopting the new ways of working.

Funding for the implementation of the Customer Digital Front Door (Dynamics CE) had been agreed and the
development sprints will continue until the New Year (2024).

56



Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level (M hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
(L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 4 16 ﬁ -
Net Score 4 3 12 a - Treat
Target Score 4 1 4 E -
O

57




Risk CR14 — Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health protection

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Connected Communities, Fulfilled Lives and Modern, Accessible,
Accountable Council

Risk Information

Under the Living with COVID strategy announced in February 2022 there is no longer a requirement for local
outbreak management plans. COVID-19 is now being considered like any other respiratory virus, with
general public health guidance for settings replacing the previous test and trace approach. WHO declared

the pandemic officially over in summer 2023. There remains an underlying infection rate due to COVID-19,
with prevalence cycling between 1 and 3% in the population currently.

Key Mitigations & Actions

e Seasonal vaccination for COVID-19 and flu is underway, starting with highest risk groups

o General guidance on symptoms and what to do remains in place via COVID-19 symptoms and what
to do - NHS (www.nhs.uk)

o UK Health Security Agency continues to risk assess outbreaks in higher risk settings like care homes
and provides information on infection prevention and control measures routinely

e There is no longer a local public health day response team in place, due to Contain Outbreak
Management Fund funding now finishing

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action

The prevalence of COVID infection locally is cycling between 1 and 3% on a regular October 2023 —

basis, in a change to the previous pattern of large waves of infection. There are seek decision as

currently no significant health protection incidents being managed on a regional basis to whether to

due to COVID-19. The public health team has returned to a business as usual model, close this risk

with UK Health Security Agency leading on health protection work in our region. The down.

current focus of work for the health protection network is to undertake a baseline
assessment of health protection risks, and our ability as a system to respond, working
closely with NHS Dorset and other partners. This work was due to go to Joint Public
Health Board, 12 October 2023.

Quarter Update

Risk considered lower due to mitigations in place, and declaration that pandemic considered over by global
health agencies.

Risk Scores
Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter

L | (xb)

Gross Score 4 4 16 a -

- Treat

Net Score 3 3 9

Target Score - - -

58


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nhs.uk%2Fconditions%2Fcovid-19%2Fcovid-19-symptoms-and-what-to-do%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.manton%40bcpcouncil.gov.uk%7C765ab469c7e9487114bd08dbcaf3901c%7Cc946331335e140e4944add798ec9e488%7C1%7C0%7C638326919692022860%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Bo%2Ff%2Fu7L2VI4iE83558N8YdWDnj%2B0NxbytbGoz046mw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nhs.uk%2Fconditions%2Fcovid-19%2Fcovid-19-symptoms-and-what-to-do%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cfiona.manton%40bcpcouncil.gov.uk%7C765ab469c7e9487114bd08dbcaf3901c%7Cc946331335e140e4944add798ec9e488%7C1%7C0%7C638326919692022860%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Bo%2Ff%2Fu7L2VI4iE83558N8YdWDnj%2B0NxbytbGoz046mw%3D&reserved=0

Risk CR15 — Effective People Strategy

Risk Owner — Director of People and Culture

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Modern, Accessible, Accountable Council

Risk Information

The council's first People Strategy was developed and launched during 2019/2020 - immediately prior to the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. A significant amount of the anticipated work within the strategy was
impacted by the need to refocus on the support and wellbeing of the workforce during the response to the
pandemic. Now that we have emerged from the full response phase of the pandemic, we have shifted our
focus to rechecking the key elements of the strategy against the changed workforce/workplace and the
wider transformation programme objectives, including a very strong focus on the identification and
development of the culture for the council and its translation into a performance management framework for
the organisation and its people. The initial strategy also came to the end of its natural 4 year cycle and a
refreshed strategy focusing on the needs of the organisation and future ambitions for our people has been
developed.

The previous decision to defer the implementation of the Pay and Reward programme has meant that the
organisation is exposing itself to increased risks with regard to equal pay for longer than had been
anticipated or planned for. This risk remains very real and present in addition to the significant difficulties in
staff morale that this decision has had.

In conjunction with the increase in the cost of living, as well as the enhanced mobility around many
employment models as a result of the pandemic, the council is experiencing difficulties in many areas
(severe in some services) around recruiting and/or retaining experienced staff.

Key Mitigations & Actions

« This year’s staff engagement survey has been undertaken to highlight those areas of most
concernto colleagues and this highlights the areas we can focus our efforts to try and address.

» Clear correlation between the key themes of the People Strategy and the design and
implementation of the transformation programme. The new Human Resources Target Operating
Model, if implemented, will align the team to effectively continue the delivery of the People
Strategy over the coming years.

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action
Ongoing implementation of the delivery action plans against the new People Strategy 1 April 2024

to mitigate the risks outlined above.

Progress the Pay and Reward project towards implementation at the earliest
opportunity so as to eradicate equal pay risk.

Quarter Update

The impact of the deferment of the Pay and Reward programme continues to cause significant pay and
morale issues for the organisation. The trade unions have expressed concerns with the proposals put
forward which we are continuing to try and work through but should this fail, then significant risk for the
organisation could follow in trying to implement alternative options.

59



Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 4 16 E <
Net Score 4 4 16 a - Treat
Target Score 2 1 2 E -

60




Risk CR18 — Failure in customer interface

Risk Owner — Director Customer & Business Delivery

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Connected Communities and Modern, Accessible and Accountable
Council

Risk Information

While full-scale transformation of the council is underway, there is a risk that our current customer service
capabilities, capacity, systems and processes fail to provide the level of responsiveness that our
communities and residents expect. This risk is specifically focused on the short-term capabilities of the
council.

Full baselining and data monitoring of the corporate Customer Contact Centre is now possible with the
significant upgrade to the council’s legacy telephony arrangements having been undertaken during the
Covid pandemic. Data is now available across all telephone contact lines within the corporate Customer
Contact Centre, but there remains much less robust data in respect of the lines that continue to be
managed within services. This reflects the current fragmented customer contact picture, which the
transformation process is designed to simplify through the introduction of new customer contact technology
and the consolidation of customer contact staff (as far as practicably possible) into a single council front
door.

Key Mitigations & Actions

* Temporary funding for 2022/23 ended in March which resulted in a reduction of approximately 20
staff that had been used to improve call response performance. Call response times have fallen
back as a consequence. Call handling performance data is available to monitor performance on a
line-by-line basis, which can support the allocation of available staff resources. The implementation
of the council’s target operating model along with streamlined technology and processes is
anticipated to mitigate the loss of temporary funding, but it is anticipated that there will be pressure
on capacity in the interim.

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action
Work is ongoing to optimise current call handling processes and website information March 2024

to support more effective digital services and reductions in call volumes. This work
will also place the service in a better position to take on additional customer contact
activity as part of the council’s transformation programme.

A new council website is currently being developed which will address identified December 2023
weaknesses in the legacy website, and which will provide a more effective platform
for the launch of new digital self-serve solutions for customers. The launch date for
the new website will be confirmed following user acceptance testing during
October/November 2023.

A new telephony system will be implemented that provides greater functionality that December 2023
will allow customer services staff to interact with customers via a variety of new
channels eg, webchat, Whatsapp etc

Service redesign will continue with the aim of establishing improved customer March 2024
journeys which are as digitally enabled as possible. This work will lead to reduced
telephone contact over time so improvements will emerge incrementally.

Quarter Update

Call handling performance remains challenging following the loss of temporary additional capacity in
2022/23. However, every effort continues to be made to distribute capacity effectively in accordance with
service demand and priorities and maintain acceptable call response times. The impact and opportunities
offered by the new telephony system and website are expected to improve the situation as customer
behaviour changes over time, but that is not anticipated to happen immediately.

61




Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level 0] hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 3 12 a -
Net Score 3 3 9 E - Treat
Target Score 2 1 2 E =)

62




Risk CR19 — Failure to determine planning applications within statutory timescales, or within

agreed extensions of time (EOT)

Risk Owner — Chief Operations Officer

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Dynamic Places and Modern, Accessible and Accountable Council

Risk Information

The risks associated with CR19 relate both to the reputation of the council and being put into special
measures by the government if performance falls below 60% for major planning applications and 70%
for non-major planning applications. The Planning Service is presently performing as follows:

Category Government 2021/2022 2022/2023
Intervention level

Majors 60% 83% 83%

Minors 70% 79% 78%

Others 70% 85% 87%

As can be shown from the above statistics, there is no risk of the council being put into ‘special
measures’ as a result of planning applications performance. The performance since 2021/22 has
consistently been at a reasonable level, well above intervention by government. It is recognised that the
above statistics include use of Extensions of Times as per government guidelines. Whilst this is
accepted at government level and can be a pragmatic way of engaging with customers to resolve
issues, the council wants to ensure the Planning Service performance moves to making decisions within
the statutory timeframes.

The weekly Planning Performance Strategic Co-ordinating Group (SCG) and Tactical Coordinating
Group (TCG) monitor performance and identify any trends in downward performance, putting
interventions in place. A recent example of this has identified that all but one performance criteria are
exceeding the government target, with performance of minor applications in the Poole area dipping
below the necessary level. This was due to operational issues with signing applications off. Additional
sign-off support was utilised from across the officer team and the performance is now improving.

Key Mitigations & Actions

¢ A Planning Improvement Board continues to monitor performance and to ensure mitigations are
on track.

e A weekly Emergency Planning approach has been introduced in summer 2023 to monitor and
manage the planning caseload backlog. This approach has begun to have a positive impact on
the older cases being dealt with.

o Atemporary senior officer has been appointed to assume responsibility for managing this
backlog of older cases. These cases are being systematically reviewed and the backlog of cases
‘over-time’ has reduced from 564 on 29/5/23 to 438 on 25/9/23.

Target Date for
Action

December 2023

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months)

The targeted approach using the weekly Strategic Co-ordinating Group and
Tactical Coordinating Group will continue to be used for the remainder of the
calendar year, when the incoming Director of Planning and Destination will review
the approach. The Planning Improvement Board will also continue to meetin order
to monitor and scrutinise performance.

Overview and Scrutiny Board will be considering a Planning Performance Progress
Report at their meeting on 13 November 2023.

63




Quarter Update

The Emergency Planning approach to monitor and manage the caseload backlog will continue to target

a reduction in outstanding cases, the results of which will be monitored and reported.

Risk Scores
Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk | Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
(L) | (Xb)
Gross Score 3 4 12 E -
Net Score 3 3 9 m - Treat
Target Score 3 2 6 E

64




Risk CR20 — Adaptation and mitigation of the negative impacts of climate change including sea

level rises and weather pattern changes on BCP’s communities

Risk Owner — Corporate Director of Resources

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Sustainable Environment

Risk Information

A detailed risk assessment is being developed and agreed but the information below represents a
summary of this draft document.

The International Panel on Climate Change's 5th report has robustly concluded that climate change is
unequivocally real and caused by human activity such as the burning of fossil fuels and destruction of
habitats releasing greenhouse gases in unprecedented levels and limiting the earth's ability to reabsorb
them.

The UK Government has committed to achieving ‘net zero’ greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and a
challenge of this scale will require transformative change to the UK economy. BCP Council has
declared a climate and ecological emergency committing the council and region to decarbonising the
economy and society by 2030 and 2050 respectively.

There are a number of departments across BCP Council that are central to the response to climate
change. However, the all-encompassing nature of achieving net zero means that all council bodies,
including departments and arms-length bodies, have a role to play. In order to be more resilient to the
threat posed by climate change, in addition to meeting the challenges of achieving net zero, it is vital
that all of BCP and its organisations effectively manage climate change risks.

Climate change risks should not be considered in isolation and should be clearly integrated into the
strategy of an organisation. It is vital for organisations to recognise that the potential impacts of climate
change are not only to do with the physical effects on people and the environment, but also to do with
the effects of the transition to a changing climate and the adaptation and mitigation work involved.
Similarly, the impacts of climate change should not only be considered as long-term risks.

Physical risks:

e Acute: The physical risks of climate change can affect organisations in different ways.

Specific weather-related events such as floods will have a significant impact on infrastructure,
causing damage to buildings and wide-scale disruption to service delivery.

e Chronic: Meanwhile, the more gradual impact of rising temperatures, such as sea level rise and
coastal change, will pose risks to certain communities and organisations, and changes in
temperature and rainfall will place additional pressures oninfrastructure.

e Indirect: As well as direct damage costs, both acute and chronic physical risks can also lead to
indirect economic and social impacts through supply chain disruptions, subsequent impacts from
infrastructure damage (for example, lack of transport, communication, manufacturing) or market
shifts (such as increases in insurance premiums, changes in the need for government support,
consumer attitudinal and expectation changes).

Key Mitigations & Actions

Physical risks mitigations in place:

e Acute: Some service areas have well established strategies and plans which seek to
incorporate climate change projections to ensure service and business continuity such as Flood
and Coastal Erosion Risk Management and Transport. However without quantified local climate
change risks, no standard way of developing adaptation plans and no centrally agreed risk
profile that we need to mitigate or adapt to, there is likely to be large variance in the
completeness of responses across the organisation.

e Chronic: As strategies and plans are not currently mandated to include climate risk planning
there is no consistent or regular way of ensuring their completeness or relevance. As such we
cannot be confident of the severity of the risk we currently face and whether existing emergency

65



management and resilience forums can scale to the extent of the physical risks of extreme
weather events predicted by climate change into the future.

e Indirect: itis currently unknown the extent to which our supply chains, the broader economic
environment or our local market are vulnerable to climate change.

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action
¢ Quantify/qualify climate risk through a climate change risk assessment Q4 2023-2024

across key thematic/service areas such as Environment, Flood & Coastal
Risk, Transport, Business, Health, Homes, Buildings

e Ensure councillors and senior officers are aware of the Climate Risk, Q3 2023
understand its consequences and are actively engaged in mitigation and
adaptation planning

e Integrate risk and vulnerabilities into Service Plans, Business Continuity Q4 2023-2024
Plans and Health Plans to identify vulnerable and sensitive receptors

e Actto reduce exposure, severity and the vulnerabilities of sensitive Q4 2022-2030
receptors within services and the region

¢ Ensure the Local Resilience Forum understands the severity and Q4 2023
likelihood of climate risks and has plans for all eventualities

e Enhance our sustainable procurement policy to ensure it incorporates the Q4 2023-2024
risk of supply chain disruption from climate change

¢ Working with the business community, we have initiated a Local Climate Q4 2023-2024

Partnership with significant and strategic organisations to identify
measures that can provide greater business resilience in relation to
energy security and price volatility by developing a Local Area Energy

Plan (LAEP).

¢ Review existing plans and strategies to ensure consistency with the Q4 2023-2024
climate declarations, make changes where appropriate and consensus
allows

e Develop a climate policy, and climate strategy that will make explicit the Q1-Q32024-
transformation required and the impact to other policies, strategies, plans 2025

and programmes

Quarter Update

BCP Council has declared a climate and ecological emergency committing the council and region to
decarbonising the economy and society by 2030 and 2050 respectively. To achieve these targets a
sustained long-term programme of investment, resourcing, projects and partnership working is required
if the council is to meet the targets as set out. An annual council report is produced to report on the work
the council has undertaken throughout the calendar year.

To date in the quarter the following activities are underway:

¢ In the final phases of supporting the Local Plan team to ensure sustainability and climate
agendas are sufficiently covered in the new Local Plan

¢ Continuing with the development and implementation of a Climate Change strategy and policy to
set the direction and guidelines for climate action across the council

e Refreshed the climate action plan to ensure its comprehensive nature and that it can get BCP
Council and the BCP area to Net Zero in the required timeframes

e Re-established the governance and management control structure to ensure better transparency
and accountability: the Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee will focus exclusively on climate
and ecology; we have launched a pilot of the Climate Action Network to test the approach in
ASC,;

e Have developed business cases for many of our high energy use buildings to increase energy
efficiency and generate renewable energy which will come to Corporate Management Board for
approval in November 2023

e A supplier has been procured for the Local Area Energy Plan, which will identify supply and
demand options for energy infrastructure and use to help the BCP area get to Net Zero by 2050

66




Through the Asset Disposal Register, we are identifying properties and assets that will be
expensive and hard to retrofit which can be sold to reduce emissions and generate capital
receipts for the council

SALIX funded energy saving schemes delivery nearing completion saving an estimated 250t
GHGe per annum and further projects commissioned via the Salix recycling fund

Have supported the new corporate strategy to ensure sustainability is at the heart of the vision
and actions for the new administration's term, including developing a strategy and action plan to
ensure ambitions can be turned into reality

Have supported the emerging tree and woodland strategy to ensure opportunities to increase
tree canopy cover and provide equal benefits to residents throughout the BCP area
Applications have been successfully made to the Green Futures Fund to cover energy efficiency
works in Two Rivers Meet Leisure Centre and Russell-Cotes Museum

Working with Poole Harbour Commissioners, RNLI, Sunseeker and Bournemouth University to
develop a joint decarbonisation plan for the port area and associated business clusters which
aims to deliver the “greenest port in the UK” upon successful delivery - an application to
InnovateUK is underway

Held 2 councillor training sessions on Climate as part of the induction process for the new cohort
of councillors

Participating in the multi-agency ‘expert’ group contributing to the drafting of the Local Nature
Recovery Strategy

Supported a bid by the Greenspace and Conservation team to DEFRA’s Landscape Recovery
Fund for the Stour Valley project that centres on river restoration and nature recovery.
Launched the Home Upgrade Grant2, in partnership with Dorset Council, that will provide grant-
funded measures to energy inefficient homes in the BCP/Dorset Council areas

Worked with Communities team and providers to deliver energy-saving assistance to low-
income households under the Household Support Fund and Shared Prosperity Fund

Risk Scores
Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
(L) | (xb)
Gross Score 4 4 16 -
Net Score 4 4 16 - Treat
Target Score 2 4 8 -

67




Risk CR21 — Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council & increase in service

requirements
Risk Owner — Chief Operations Officer

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Modern, Accessible and Accountable Council

Risk Information

Several global conflicts have required a humanitarian response/offer of refuge to those fleeing and in
each case the UK government has set out its policy for accommodating and resettling refugees in every
local authority area. The schemes in operation are:

e UK Refugee Resettlement (UKRS - previously known as the Gateway Scheme/Syrian
Resettlement scheme)

o Afghan Resettlement (ACRS/ARAP)

e Homes for Ukraine/ Ukraine Family scheme

In addition to these schemes the Home Office also accommodates all who arrive and apply for asylum
in the UK, and if granted refugee status these households require access to accommodation and
support with community integration. Due to the exponential increase in the volume of asylum seekers
arriving in the UK, the government has become reliant on contingency accommodation (nightly let
hotels). BCP currently has hotels who are contracted by the Home Office to provide this
accommodation while those housed await their asylum decision.

Risks related to asylum and refugee resettlement include:

e Lack of required support for those seeking asylum and those who are already refugees

e Safeguarding risks to asylum seekers/refugees as well as to staff or the public not being
mitigated

e Pressure on the BCP housing market which is already inhospitable and unable to meet demand
of BCP families

e Pressure on Primary, Secondary and Community NHS services from these cohorts of new
patients

e Pressure on social care services (notably Children’s Services as a result of Unaccompanied
Asylum Seeking Children)

e Pressure on Homelessness services as asylum seekers receive positive decisions on their
applications and are given notice to vacate their Home Office funded hotel accommodation

e Pressure on schools to provide education and related support to refugee children

e A detrimental impact on the tourism economyin BCP, as hotels in use are a significant portion
of the available rooms (impact anticipated more in summer months)

e Concerns around community cohesion and tensions in relation to asylum and refugee
resettlement

¢ Increase in activity of extremist groups

Key Mitigations & Actions

e Multi-agency partnership working and governance framework in place, communication channels
in place e.qg. briefings, webpages, dedicated staff team established, links with government
agencies

e Strategic leadership from BCP in relation to asylum accommodation and refugee resettlement,
identifying need for collaboration with all stakeholders and progressing with impact assessment
for the council and its partners of asylum and refugee resettlement

e Additional grant funded resource recruited to manage this new programme and case manage
households now resident in the BCP area and enable proactive preventative support

e Engagement with the Home Office and their contracted providers to discuss and deliver
dispersed asylum accommodation in the community

e Workwith the voluntary and community sector (VCS) to address gaps in support required across
all schemes

68




e Appropriate use of tariff incomes to incentivize hosting sustainment and access to move-on
accommodation for Ukrainian refugees

e Participation in Local Authority Housing Fund programme (government grant funded) to mitigate
the risk of homelessness for Ukrainian and Afghan refugees while adding to housing portfolio of
BCP Council longer term

e Lobbying on the pressures being experienced by local authorities, to Ministers and the Home

Office
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action
Review staffing resources and anticipated capacity needed into financial year 30 November
2024/2025 and beyond 2023

Maintain dynamic impact assessment for BCP Council and stakeholders of asylum | Ongoing
accommodation and across all UK Resettlement programmes; amending or adding
required data to monitor needs and using this to inform services procured as well
as to inform discussions with central government

Delivery of housing units as agreed within Local Authority Housing Fund 31 March 2024
Programme

Continue to build on prevention agenda and positive move-on to minimize impact | Ongoing
on homeless presentations

Work with South West Strategic Migration Partnership to identify demands from December 2024
and needs of refugees exiting asylum estate

Quarter Update

The Home Office retains the same amount of hotel accommodation in the borough to house asylum
seeking individuals. BCP has lead a strategic group in raising concerns about the volume and
concentration of asylum accommodation in the borough and the impact this has on healthcare systems,
social care, the VCS, communities and tourism.

The national plan for equitable asylum dispersal in the community has been slow in delivery and the
Home Office contracted provider Clearsprings Ready Homes continues to endeavour to procure units of
accommodation in the private rented sector to be able to re-accommodate those in hotels. The local
housing market does not have suitable affordable units to meet the demand alongside that of all others
in housing need.

Government policy on maximizing hotel use without bringing new hotels online could see the humber of
bed spaces in BCP in existing hotels increase by 30-40%. This is a national policy and concerns raised
about existing pressures have not altered maximisation decisions.

Streamlined asylum processing is also now impacting councils who host contingency hotels, as a large
volume of asylum applicants are receiving their refugee status and being given notice to vacate the
Home Office hotels, leading to an increase in homeless presentations and related temporary
accommodation placements (currently 14, 12 of which are non-statutory placements).

Following the closure of the Afghan bridging hotel BCP has 5 families who remainin temporary
accommodation, awaiting an offer of a Local Authority Housing Fund property to meet/discharge a
statutory homelessness duty. BCP Council has committed to ongoing assistance in resettling UKRS and
Afghan households with wraparound support. Support provision remains contracted out to ICN.

As at October 2023, approximately 353 families have arrived in the BCP area through the Homes for
Ukraine scheme with new arrivals slowing significantly. This includes 635 individuals (218 children
including 2 unaccompanied minors).

Use of tariff funding continues to financially assist hosts to continue to accommodate their guests as
well as for use to incentivize move-on into the private rented sector.

69




There have been 201 households leaving the scheme (includes return to Ukraine, move-on into own
accommodation etc.) Prevention of homelessness and use of temporary accommodation has been
prioritized (offer of interim accommodation being a rematch on the scheme where suitable).

Risk Scores
Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk Risk Movement Risk Strategy
Level () hood | Score | Matrix | during Quarter
L) (IxL)
Gross Score 3 3 9 E =)
Net Score 3 2 6 E - Treat
Target Score 3 1 3 a -
®

70




Risk CR22 — Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand

Risk Owner — Director of Adult Social Care, Director of Commissioning for People

Links to Corporate Objective(s): Fulfilled Lives

Risk Information

Adult Social Care:

Despite additional care capacity it is challenging to identify sufficient care resource to meet the
continuing high demand for hospital discharge and demand within the community. The capacity
shortfall in the care sector is further exacerbated by the increased needs of individuals leaving
hospital.

W orkforce capacity within the local care market is also a national issue. This was exacerbated by
Covid, staff seeking alternative employment and recruitment difficulties and the trend of staff leaving
the care sector continues.

The lack of market capacity impacts timely hospital discharge, drives up the cost of care placements
and limits choice for individuals.

This situation has seen a great improvement since January 2023 with the Homecare Framework able
to provide the capacity to meet the demand, thus the waiting list has reduced from 3407 hrs waiting to
be sourced in April 2022 to 1059 hrs in April 2023. In addition, the Rapid Response services, and the
increase in reablement capacity have positively impacted in the timely discharges from hospital. The
challenge remains with securing care homes placements within the BCP ceiling rates. Robust
mechanisms are in place with the Brokerage Team to challenge these rates from the Market.

Key Mitigations & Actions

e Contract Monitoring and the Service Improvement Team provide personalised support to
providers and provide an early insight into any escalating challenges which specific providers
may be facing

o Review of Protected Hours policy to ensure optimum flow through the system and capacity is
released in an efficient way to support discharges

e Additional capacity added through rapid response has been re-purposed to become Discharge to
Assess (D2A) community resource to enhance timely discharges from hospital

o Further development of Reablement Service (bedded and community) to reduce need for long
term care following period of ill health/injury

o Care home strategy and extra care housing strategies have been developed and Homecare

strategy and review of Homecare operation model in progress

Embedded practice for pre-placement checklists for care home placements are business as usual

Review of Proud to Care (P2C) initiative to support the wider workforce

Free childcare for BCP framework domiciliary care providers is available in school holidays

Free parking permits for BCP framework providers have been issued for use in difficult parking

areas across the BCP Council area and free bike hire is available to care staff as an alternative to

driving

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) Target Date for
Action

e Maintain focus on supporting providers to recruit and retain workforce December 2023
October 2023

71



e Continue voluntary sector funding Community Action Network and sector to
provide support at emergency departments and community hospital sites January 2024

e Review reablement capacity and performance with a view to increasing the
numbers receiving reablement

Quarter Update

October 2023 update:
Capacity within the home care market has generally remained stable since the last update, but demand
has increased for support to those with more complex needs. This also applies to the capacity of the
care homes within the BCP area to meet challenging behaviour needs, and for those that can do so,
the costs are much greater than allowed for by the council’s fees framework.

Work with the Integrated Care System partners to review and transform the recovery and prevention
model is ongoing and plans for the winter have been prepared but there are concerns that budget
constraints may impact on the ability of the council to fulfil its responsibilities if costs continue to rise.

Risk Scores

Assessment | Impact | Likeli- | Risk | Risk |Movement during| Risk Strategy

Level 0] hood | Score | Matrix Quarter
L) (IxL)
Gross Score 4 3 12 E -
Net Score 4 2 8 m - Treat
Target Score 3 2 6 E -

72



CHANGE IN CORPORATE RISK SCORES FROM Q03:2022-23 TO Q02: 2023-24

CR2: Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for
children - Children & Communities

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-

CRO9: Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the
delivery of services

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- | QO02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
=)
Net
-
Target
-
CR13: Failure to deliver the transformation programme
Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- | QO02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-
O O O O
CR15: Effective People Strategy
Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- | QO02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
N E E a a t
e a E E E

73

Appendix 2

CR4: Loss or disruption to IT Systems and Networks from cyber

]

attack
Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- | Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
o E a t
- a a t
s a a
@

CR12: Failure to achieve appropriate outcomes and quality of
service for young people

QO03:22- | Q04:22- QO02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-
CR14: Continuity of Public Health arrangements for health
protection
Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
- - - - Unknown
CR18: Failure in customer interface
Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- QO02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-




CR19: Failure to determine planning applications within statutory
timescales, or within agreed extensions of time (EOT)

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-

CR21: Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council &

increase in service requirements

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
Net
-
Target
-
O

74

Appendix 2

CR20: Adaption and mitigation of the negative impacts of climate
change including sea level rises and weather pattern changes on
BCP’s communities

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction
23 23 24 24 of Travel
Gross
-
Net
-
Target
-

CR22: Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand

Q03:22- | Q04:22- | Q01:23- Q02:23- | Direction

23 23 24 24 of Travel
o a a E a l
N E E % l
- a m




Risk CR4 - Loss or disruption to IT Systems

Appendix 3

and Networks from cyber attack

October 2023 Update - Mandatory ICT Training Completion Rates:

Course

BCP2023 - Personal cyber part 1 v1.0

BCP2023 - Alv1.0

Think first v1.0

GDPR Data Protection v1.0

BCP 2023 - May Best practices v1.0

BCP 2023 - Cyber Attack v1.0

BCP 2023 - Scams vL.1

BCP 2023 -insider threats2 vl.1

BCP 2022: cyber-criminal use the information v1.0
BCP 2022: cyber-Security the essentials v1.0

2022 - Danger of Public WiFi v1.0

BCP 2022 Social Engineering course v1.0

BCP 2022 Password Safety course v1.0

BCP 2022 Remote Working course v1.0

BCP 2022 Physical Security course v1.0

BCP 2022 Essential Phishing Awareness course v1.1
BCP 2022 Malicious Software course v1.0

Publish Date
2023/10/02
2023/08/01
2023/07/04
2023/06/05
2023/04/28
2023/03/22
2023/01/13
2023/01/12
2022/10/20
2022/10/20
2022/09/22
2022/04/08
2022/04/08
2022/04/08
2022/04/08
2022/04/08
2022/04/08

Complete - Users.

1551
2704
2894
3047
3225
3336
2903
2944
3615
3546
2812
2934
2501
2603
2416
2734
2393

T T YT YT YYTYYYYYYYOYY

75

Complete - Percentage
28.16%
49.09%
52.54%
55.32%
58.55%
60.57%
52.71%
53.45%
65.63%
64.38%
63.69%
66.46%
56.65%
58.96%
54.72%
61.93%
54.2%

Not Complete - Users
3957
2304
2614
2451
2283
2172
2605
2564
1893
1962
1603
1481
1514
1812
1993
1681
2022

T YUY Y YU YTY YT YYYOYTYOYNY

Not Complete - Percentage
71.84%
50.91%
A7.46%
44.68%
41.45%
39.43%
47.29%
46.55%
34.37%
35.62%
36.31%
33.54%
43.35%
41.04%
45.28%
38.07%
45.8%




This page is intentionally left blank

76



Agenda ltem 9

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Appointment of Independent co-opted members to Audit &
Governance (A&G) Committee

Meeting date 26 October 2023

Status Public Report

Executive summary Although not a legislative requirement, best practice and a ‘2022
position statement’ by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPFA) endorsed by the Department for Levelling

Up, Housing and Communities recommend that audit committees in
local government should include at least two co-opted independent
members.

Previous BCP Council Audit & Governance (A&G) Committee and
Council meetings agreed the in-principle decision to recruit two co-
opted independent members to the BCP Council A& G Committee.

A number of local decisions were agreed which enabled a suitable
recruitment process, through open advertisement, to the BCP
Council A&G Committee.

The recommendations in this report endorse then approve the
decisions made by the selection and recruitment panel, which was
Councillors Andrews, Herrett and Chapmanlaw respectively.

Full Council need to approve the appointment of co-opted members
to a BCP Council committee.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that :

1. A&G Committee endorse the decisions made by the
selection and recruiting panel to appoint two co-opted
independent members to the BCP Council A&G Committee.

2. That full Council approve the appointment of two co-opted
independent members to the A&G Committee for a period
which will end on 31 March 2026.

Reason for Best practice suggests the appointment of two independent
recommendations member(s) to local Authority audit committees, to enhance the
effectiveness and knowledge base of such Committees.

Legislation is likely to follow, in England, which will require local
authorities to include two independent members when forming their
audit committees.

Portfolio Holder(s): Clir Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance

Corporate Director lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources

77




Report Authors Nigel Stannard
Head of Audit & Management Assurance

201202 128784
(=] nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Wards Council-wide
Classification For Decision
Background

1. Many local authorities include independent members on their audit committees (or
similar) as this is seen as strengthening the internal control and governance of the
authority. Independent members with appropriate skills and experience can
supplement those of elected members and improve the effectiveness of such
committees.

2. Released in 2022, a ‘position statement’ by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA), endorsed by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing &
Communities, the Home Office and other public sector bodies, recommends that
audit committees inlocal government (and police bodies) should include at least two
co-opted independent members to provide appropriate technical expertise.

3. In time many commentators suggest this requirement will be established in
legislation in England, as it already is in Wales.

4. At the meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 27 July 2023 the following
was agreed:

RESOLVED that
a) Two independent members be co-opted to the BCP Council Audit and Governance
Committee;

b) The term of appointment be for an initial period ending at the close of the municipal
year 2025/26 on 31 March 2026 with an option thereafter for a further two years if
mutually agreed,

c¢) An initial allowance of £1,084 per annum for each independent member is agreed
with this initial figure subject to review by the Council’s Independent Remuneration
Panel, with any changes being backdated should this be recommended and agreed by
the Remuneration Panel;

d) A selection and recruitment panel be created, comprising of the Chair of the Audit
and Governance Committee and two other Audit and Governance Committee elected
Members (supported by the Head of Audit and Management Assurance);

e) Following the recruitment process, a report from the recruitment panel be presented
to the next available Audit and Governance Committee, outlining the process and the
panel’'s recommendations. This report to be endorsed by the Audit and Governance
Committee and a formal recommendation agreed for consideration by full Council;

f) In accordance with BCP Council policies, Audit and Governance Committee delegate
to the Head of Audit and Management Assurance, in consultation with the Chair of Audit
and Governance Committee, any changes to the role profile and person specification
required and the operational details associated with recruitment, shortlisting and
interviews.

Voting: Unanimous

78


mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Independent member(s) areminder

5.

Independent members are non-councillors who are suitably qualified with
experience in the area of audit/governance and bring specialist knowledge and
insight to the workings and deliberations of the committee to inter alia provide:

* An effective independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management
framework.

* Independent review of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance.

* Independent challenge to, and assurance over, the Council’s internal control
environment.

Independent members would not have a vote in the same way as an elected
councillor of the committee and will be part of the committee in an advisory and
consultative manner.

Independent members would have ‘co-opted’ legislative status under the power to
co-opt in the Local Government Act 1972 and further described under section13 of
the Local Government & Housing Act 1989. Co-opted members can be elected
Chair and have similar rights (to elected members) to access information and they
would have obligations under the Code of Conduct for Members.

The agreed role description, skills, competencies and person specification is
attached as Appendix A for information. This was constructed using template
suggestions from best practice guidance and other local authorities. It contains
specific best practice definitions and eligibility criteria for individuals to be reasonably
considered independent, in the context of this role.

The recruitment and selection process

9.

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

A communication strategy was agreed to advertise the roles including BCP Council
website and social media platforms. BCP area business community social media
platforms and (business) opt in newsletter facilities were also used to advertise the
roles.

The advertisements went live on 16 August and closed on 10 September.

Interviews were held on 19 September and 26 September. The interview panel
comprised Councillor Marcus Andrews, Chair of A&G Committee, Councillor Richard
Herrett and Councillor Adrian Chapmanlaw.

The interview panel asked the same core 8 questions to each candidate and scored
answers independently, from each other, using a 5 point scoring system. The panel
then discussed scoring, no moderation of scoring was required as independent
scores were similar and the overall ranking of candidates was unanimously the
same.

Two excellent candidates were therefore successfully identified as suitable co-opted
independent members subject to this A&G Committee approval and endorsement by
Council.

The two candidates have both agreed to the role but are clear the process requires
approval by A&G Committee and endorsement by Council before formal on-
boarding and next steps can take place.

The panel also unanimously agreed a third individual possessed all the skills and
attributes required of a suitable co-opted independent member. The Chair of the
panel asked the Head of Audit & Management Assurance to make contact with this
individual to ask, should the opportunity arise, whether the Council may contact
them in future. The individual was contacted and they have confirmed they would be
willing to support the Council should an opportunity arise.

79



On-boarding and next steps

16. Subject to this committee and then Council endorsement the more detailed on-
boarding and next steps can begin, including:

e Creation of bcpcouncil.gov.uk email accounts, to safely and securely share
data.

e Access to relevant systems including ModGov to read committee reports.
e Proportionate training and induction.

e Set up of payment of allowance, via 1/12"" a month transfer.

e Agree and sign up to appropriate members code of conduct.

e Make appropriate declarations of interest.

17. The A&G Chair has invited the two proposed candidates to the A&G Committee on
26 October 2023 to observe the meeting, as any member of the public can and prior
to A&G Committee endorsement and full Council approval.

Summary of financial implications

18. The full year costwould initially be circa £2,200. Should the independent
remuneration panel adjust the fee in line with benchmarking results the fee may
potentially rise to circa £5,000 per municipal year.

19. No specific budget exists within BCP Council for this allowance. However the Head
of Audit & Management Assurance has limited but sufficient flexibility to absorb this
relatively small additional cost within existing budgets on an ongoing basis, so no
additional budget allocation is required.

Summary of legal implications

20. There is currently no statutory requirement for an independent person to be
appointed to the Audit Committee in England.

21. A council's audit committee is established further to the Local Government Acts
1972 and 2000 and its purpose is to give assurance to elected Members and the
public about the governance, financial reporting and performance of the Council.

22. The decision in principle to appoint an independent member(s) to the Audit and
Governance Committee is for Council to approve, the actual appointment will also
need to be endorsed by Council.

23. Independent members would have ‘co-opted’ legislative status under the power to
co-opt in the Local Government Act 1972 and further described under section13 of
the Local Government & Housing Act 1989.

Summary of human resources implications

24. Independent member(s) will need to agree to comply with the Council’'s Code of
Conduct for Members, which sets out standards of behaviour expected from all
members. Additionally, they will be required to complete a Declaration of Interests
form on an annual basis.

Summary of sustainability impact

25. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

26. There are no direct public health implications from this report.

80



Summary of equality implications

27. Applications for the position(s) of Independent member(s) to the Audit Committee
will be open to all residents over the age of 18 in BCP Council and will be carried out
in accordance with the Council's duties under the Equality Act 2010.

Summary of risk assessment

28. Subject to adequate vetting procedures and adherence to the Person Specification,
this initiative should augment the Audit and Governance Committee’s independence,
provide additional expertise, and provide an opportunity for the community to play an
enhanced role in the governance of the Council.

Background papers

CIPFA Publication 2022 - Audit committees: practical guidance for local authorities and
police

Appointment of Independent co-opted members to Audit & Governance (A&G)
Committee — Meeting 27 July 2023

Appendices
None

81



This page is intentionally left blank

82



Agenda Item 10

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Governance of Corporate Health & Safety and Fire Safety
Meeting date 26 October 2023
Status Public Report

Executive summary This report details progress made on the delivery of Health &
Safety and Fire Safety governance arrangements for BCP Council
and highlights:

¢ Implementation of the Governance framework continues to be
embedded and is working effectively.

e Reporting to the Health and Safety and Fire Safety Board
continues on a quarterly basis and has generally good
attendance.

e Some operational service issues have arisen, including HSE
improvement notices, these have been successfully resolved.

e The Corporate H&S Team is currently one FTE advisor short of
full establishment.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

(@) Audit and Governance Committee notes the continued
progress in implementing the Health and Safety and Fire
Safety governance arrangements and the operational
updates.

(b) Health & Safety and Fire Safety ongoing governance
arrangements updates continue to be reported annually to
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Reason for An update was requested by the Audit & Governance Committee
recommendations for twelve months after the October 2022 meeting to provide
continued reassurance that Health & Safety and Fire Safety
Governance arrangements continue to be implemented to an
acceptable standard.

The Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference include the
following in the 'Other functions' section - To consider
arrangements for health and safety and fire safety.

83



Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor Mike Cox

Corporate Director(s):

Health & Safety — lan O'Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources
Fire Safety — Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations Officer

Report Authors Rebecca Lawry (Health and Safety Manager)
Phillip Lawrence (Fire Safety Manager)

Wards All

Classification For decision

Background

1. The service provided by the Corporate Health & Safety and Fire Safety teams is

to ensure competent, specialist and risk-based advice and guidance is afforded to
the Council to enable it to carry out its statutory duties. These duties fall under
legislative framework of the Health & Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and the
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 and assist in promoting a positive
safety culture throughout the Council.

The BCP Council Health, Safety and Welfare Policy (reviewed October 2023) and
the Fire Safety Policy (reviewed April 2023) set out the roles and responsibilities
that place the Health & Safety and Fire Safety Board at the centre of strategic
oversight and performance monitoring.

The BCP Council Health and Safety and Fire Safety Governance framework
details the governance arrangements, including the Health and Safety and Fire
Safety Board, Directorate Health and Safety and Fire Safety meetings and the
Safety Supporters Forum.

Ongoing Governance arrangements

4. Health & Safety and Fire safety Board meetings, chaired by the Chief Executive

or the Corporate Director of Wellbeing, continue quarterly, with members
attending remotely via Microsoft Teams or in person. Attendance at these
meetings by Directors (or their representative) since the time of the last report to
this Committee has been good.

Most Directorates hold quarterly Health & Safety and Fire Safety meetings via
Microsoft Teams. These meetings remain critical to the Health and Safety and
Fire safety governance. The few areas that do not have a meeting in place have
been asked to address the issue.

The Safety Supporters Forum, comprising of representatives from Directorates,
Corporate Health & Safety, Corporate Fire Safety and Union representatives,
commenced in December 2020 and has met quarterly since. The forum provides
a means for consultation with all employees as per statutory requirements.
Colleagues can share best practices and issues at the workplace and operational
level and provide communication tools between employees and the Board. A
Microsoft Teams channel facilitates communication between attendees.

A Microsoft Teams channel has been established to allow appointed and trained
Local Fire Safety co-ordinators a forum to discuss and share best practices
across premises and Service Directorates concerning Fire Safety.

84



Reporting to the Board

8.

Quarterly health and safety and fire safety reports are submitted at each Board
meeting, providing information on such matters as audit programme planning,
policy and governance implementation, formation of council H&S procedures,
staff training and communications, Fire Risk Assessments, significant accident
and incidents, contact with enforcement bodies and accident and near-miss data
for health and safety and fire incidents.

A Corporate Health & Safety and Fire Safety Risk Register is established and
reviewed at the Board meetings. This risk register contains Directorate high-level
risks that need further mitigation measures to reduce the current risk level. These
are raised at the Board to agree on necessary risk reduction measures.

Operational updates

Health and Safety
Resource

10.

11.

The Corporate Health & Safety (H&S) team continue to sit within the Resources
Directorate, under Finance, with Internal Audit, Emergency Planning and
Insurance & Risk Management, all reporting to the Head of Audit and
Management Assurance.

The BCP Council Corporate H&S team comprises of one Manager, four Advisors
and one Training and Business Support Officer. Over the last year two Advisor
posts have been vacant for periods of time and one is now vacant again. These
vacancies have impacted on the speed of delivery of some objectives, particularly
the proactive audit programme, and will continue to do so over the remaining part
of the year.

Corporate work

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Staffing resource issues has affected the development of a Corporate H&S
inspection (audit) plan, visiting Council owned and operated buildings and other
assets to ensure compliance with policies. The inspection program will focus on
ensuring that new and updated policies are procedures are being operationally
embedded into working practices, particularly in higher risk areas.

The maintained schools audit has been rewritten and renamed Safer School
Inspection. The document covers all aspects of safety including premises
management, art, design and technology. The team will be working closely with
Facilities Management to assistin compliance, in particular, for water quality and
asbestos management.

Implementation of a health surveillance program for workers exposed to identified
occupational hazards is ongoing. Working with colleagues in People and Culture,
initial work has been undertaken to identify the numbers from each Directorate
who may be affected. Work can then proceed with identifying which role profiles
necessitate health surveillance and link this to Dynamics F&O. This will ensure a
more robust process exists to capture colleagues at pre-employment stage and
throughout their career with the council.

A training plan has been developed that covers all essential H&S training,
requiring delivery from external training providers. The portfolio has recently been
expanded to include Water Awareness and Safety for colleagues working within 3
metres of the water’s edge.

The team have continued to provide the Events team with support in the form of
attendance at the monthly Safety Advisory Group (SAG) meetings, review of
event documentation and site walkarounds of major events.

85



Corporate systems

17.

18.

19.

Work to establish a single supplier for the lone working device or telephone app.
solution for colleagues in higher risk service areas has been completed using a
procurement framework. The team are working with key stakeholders to ensure
that lone working risk assessments are completed, new users are identified,
existing users are transitioned efficiently to the new supplier, redundant devices
returned and payments ceased.

The Incident and near-miss Reporting System is undergoing further
enhancements. These include a back-office function to allow quicker analysis and
reporting on all service areas by the team. The addition of an Adverse Event
option will cover reports of Violent and Threatening behaviour, Verbal Abuse and
medical conditions.

Development of the Cautionary Contact System (CCS) by our inhouse IT team
remains in progress. Feedback from the initial user acceptance testing (UAT) has
been returned for review and incorporation. Legacy systems continue to be used
until the new system goes live (anticipated early 2024). These legacy systems
are 'safe' but are administratively cumbersome.

Policies and procedures

20.

21.

22.

A light review has been made to the Health, Safety and Welfare Policy. A full
review is planned so that the Policy is more reflective of the modern council that
we are aspiring to be.

In line with the Health and Safety Executive's Management Standards the team
have been working closely with HR and the Policy and Research teams to
produce an organisational stress risk assessment. The assessment covers six
key areas of work design that, if poorly managed, are associated with poor
health, lower productivity and increased accident and sickness absence rates.

Following an Improvement Notices issued by the Health & Safety Executive
(HSE) to BCP Council (October 2022) in relation to noise, vibration, health
surveillance and manual handling, improvements were made to our associated
Procedures and forms. The improvement notices were complied with and have
been formally removed by the HSE.

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) interventions

23.

24.

25.

As part of the national sector plan, HSE Inspectors visited a maintained school in
December 2022 to review their arrangements for the management of asbestos.
Material breaches were found and a Fee for Intervention paid. HSE have
announced that further visits to schools will continue from October 2023, building
upon their findings from previous inspections.

An HSE Inspector made an unannounced visit to a construction site at
Bournemouth West. An Improvement Notice was issued for failure to adequately
control the exposure of employees to substances hazardous to health. The
improvement notice has been complied with and has been formally removed by
the HSE.

The HSE visited Nuffield Household Waste and Recycling Centre (HWRC). The
arrangements for the manual handling of white goods, equipment servicing,
transport, colleague training, pyrotechnic storage and security were some of the
aspects inspected. Minor points raised included the segregation and compatibility
of storage for hazardous substances, labelling of non-notified asbestos bags and
face fit testing of respiratory protective equipment for those handling it. There will
be no further action.

86



26.

An anonymous complaint was made to HSE concerning balls leaving the confines
of Queen's Park golf course. After BCP Council providing information, the HSE
closed the complaint, satisfied that control measures are being suitably applied.

Fire Safety

Service Delivery

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The Fire Safety team for BCP Council comprises one full-time Fire Safety
Manager, one full-time and one part-time (3 days per week) Fire Safety Advisor,
2.6 FTEs in total. The Corporate Fire Safety team continues delivering the service
from within the Facilities Management (FM) service team, falling within the
Customer, Arts and Property Directorate.

Following an acute reduction in resources previously reported. The Corporate
Fire Safety team's complement was restored in November 2022 and has been
unaffected. The team commenced a recovery program based upon a prioritised
program of work to maximise productivity, focusing on Fire Risk Assessment
completion.

The summer of 2023 repeated many events throughout BCP, which started in
2022. The Fire Safety team provided support through the established Safety
Advisory Group (SAG), event site visits and liaison with partner agencies,
including our enforcing authority, Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
(DWFRS). The Fire Safety team fully supported the Bournemouth Air Festival
2023 (BAF) event.

The Fire Safety team maintained contact with operational service areas.
Resources have been allocated to specific high-risk areas to understand the day-
to-day practice better. The knowledge gained continues to result in improved
support and advice the corporate team offers. Advice is given to all Directorates
and schools on many different aspects, including risk assessments.

Support continues to Local Authority maintained schools on localised fire safety
arrangements and mitigation plans following their Fire Risk Assessments or
subsequent reviews.

Legislative Update

32.

33.

On 28 April 2022, the Building Safety Bill received Royal Assent to become the
Building Safety Act 2022. The Building Safety Act 2022 is significant legislation.
Section 156 of the Act came into force in England on 1 October 2023. It amends
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order, 2005, by adding to the existing duties
of Responsible Persons under the Order. Section 156 also focuses explicitly on
fire safety compliance and places essential responsibilities on organisations.
These responsibilities apply to all non-domestic premises, such as where people
work, visit or stay, workplaces, and the non-domestic parts of multi-occupied
residential buildings (e.g. communal corridors, stairways, plant rooms). The
requirements do not apply to individual domestic premises. Its primary goal is to
ensure the safety of occupants and minimise the risk of fire incidents.

Section 156 of the Building Safety Act 2022 has been thoroughly reviewed, BCP
Council's Fire Safety support functions (Corporate Team and Housing support)
commitment to fire safety has been and continues to be unwavering. Proactive
measures have been taken to ensure BCP Council facilities have the necessary
fire safety systems and protocols. BCP Council fire risk assessments are
conducted diligently, following the Publicly Available Specification number 79
proforma (PAS 79-1 2020 Fire Risk Assessment - Part 1 Premises other than
housing and PAS 79-2 2020 Fire Risk Assessment - Part 2 Housing code of
practice), recognised within the fire safety industry as a suitable template to
conduct a suitable and sufficient Fire Risk Assessment. Fire safety arrangements

87



are detailed within these Fire Risk assessments, and all hazards are identified. All
the requirements within section 156 about completing a suitable and sufficient
Fire Risk are met. Additionally, BCP Council continues investing in suitable fire
detection systems, ensuring facilities are well-equipped to handle fire incidents
effectively.

34. Working parties continue to meet and discuss the evolution and implementation
of this legislation to prepare BCP Council for the changes the legislation shall
require. Updates surrounding relevant legislative changes and their cumulative
impact on BCP Council continue to be provided to the Health & Safety and Fire
Safety Board.

Information, Instruction and Training

35. The appointment and training of persons to undertake the Local Fire Safety Co-
ordinator role continues. Service Directors appoint this role, and in most cases,
this is not a new appointment as individuals are already undertaking the
associated duties required to appropriately identify and mitigate local-level fire
safety risks and provide direct liaison with the Corporate Fire Safety team.

36. The Corporate Fire Safety team delivers training specific to the Local Fire Safety
Co-ordinator role within BCP Council, and all guidance is available via either the
team or BCP Council intranet and is reviewed periodically or as required.

Policies and Procedures

37. The Fire Safety Policy has received its annual review, requiring only minor
amendments. Several procedures have been created and reviewed, along with
supplementary guidance materials to assist with fire safety management
arrangements.

Summary of financial implications

38. The 2023-24 budget for the Health & Safety Team is £284,400, and for the Fire
Safety Team is £127,100. The H&S Budget includes £74,000 which s the
corporate training budget for all mandatory and safe levels training across the
Council, covering training such as manual handling, conflict resolution, asbestos
and legionella awareness and duty to manage, emergency first aid, fire warden
duties and others.

39. An underspend of about £35,000 is forecast in the Health & Safety team
representing the period an advisor has and will not been in post. No material
under or overspends is projected in the Fire Safety team.

40. No financial implications are arising from the specific recommendations of this
report.

41. There are potential financial risks associated with inadequate or non-compliant
Health, Safety and Welfare or Fire Safety practices that could lead to financial
penalties and losses. The governance arrangements outlined in this report will
help to mitigate these.

Summary of legal implications

42. No legal implications are arising from the specific recommendations of this report.

43. The Council is legally obliged to have adequate Health and Fire Safety
arrangements in place, and the current governance arrangements support
demonstrating compliance with these obligations.

88



Summary of human resource implications

44. No human resource implications are arising from the specific recommendations of
this report.

45. Where necessary, HR is contacted to ensure that HR implications of any H&S
management actions are considered.
Summary of environmental impact
46. There are no environmental impacts arising from the specific recommendations of
this report.
Summary of public health implications
47. There are no public health implications arising from the specific recommendations
of this report.
Summary of equality implications

48. No equalities implications are arising from the specific recommendations of this
report.

49. Where necessary, the Corporate H&S team work alongside HR to ensure that
both equality and H&S aspects are considered to ensure that equality aspects,
such as disability, are suitably actioned.

Summary of risk assessment

50. Failure to report annually would leave the Committee unaware of continuing
governance arrangements. This failure increases the risk of ongoing governance
falling below acceptable standards.

51. Annual reporting to this Committee is considered appropriate. However, there
should remain the option for exception reporting if relevant officers or members
are concerned that governance arrangements may have been compromised.

Background papers:

52. Health, Safety and Welfare Policy (internal link only for Councillors and officers)

53. Fire Safety Policy (internal link only for Councillors and officers)

Appendices
None

89


https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/HealthandFireSafety/EduoDXeocSRAmu3cUgqMeLwBp2nqmzBEecjuE82bCmP3oQ?e=l7kDPY
https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/HealthandFireSafety/EV6kuYUu-KhCidQ76KgbOgoBvFHvXOZrEgsMTlgOMUVqOw?e=CwhLCX

This page is intentionally left blank

90



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Agenda ltem 11

BCP

Council

Report subject

Emergency planning and business continuity annual update

Meeting date

26 October 2023

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

Emergency planning and business continuity are statutory duties
for BCP Council. Activity over the reporting period has been about
continuing to build capability and put plans in place in line with
higher risks, local and national learning, and nationally-driven
priorities and workstreams such as planning for a national power
outage. This report sets out the activities undertaken to achieve this
and also highlights the challenges arising.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that Audit and Governance Committee:

a) Note the emergency planning and business
continuity activity that has taken place during the
monitoring period

b) Note the ongoing issues with delivering the business
continuity management programme

c) Note the current issues within the Emergency
Planning Team regarding resource and the impact
this will have on service delivery

d) Note the currentresilience position locally and
nationally and the implications of this.

Reason for
recommendations

It is a statutory requirement for BCP Council to have effective
emergency planning and business continuity planning and
arrangements in place in accordance with the Civil Contingencies Act
2004 and to therefore ensure it can provide assistance to the
communities of the BCP Council area in the event of disruption.

Portfolio Holder(s):

ClIr Vikki Slade

Corporate Director

lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources

Report Authors Alyson Whitley, Emergency Planning and Resilience Manager
alyson.whitley@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Wards Council-wide

Classification

For update and information

91




Background

1.

This report provides an update on the emergency planning and business continuity
arrangements in place across BCP Council and related activity during the period of this
annual monitoring report from November 2022 to October 2023.

It is a statutory requirement for BCP Council to have effective emergency planning and

business continuity arrangements in place in accordance with the duties placed on BCP
Council as a category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 (CCA). The

fundamental elements of this are:

e plan and prepare

e test, validate and exercise plans (to make sure they work)

e train and exercise staff (specialist response staff and all staff)

e maintain plans and arrangements (to ensure they are up to date)

e respond and recover from incidents when they occur

e debrief and learn - then feed this back into planning and preparation.

As part of the council’s statutory duties it has to come together under the multi-agency
partnership of the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) to plan, prepare and train for
emergencies. The LRF is not a legal entity; it is a partnership comprising the category 1
and category 2 responder organisations that operate within the footprint of Dorset LRF
which is coterminous with the Dorset Police boundary. LRF members have to plan
together to be able to use their collective resources in the most effective way in the event
of an emergency. BCP Council is a constituent, accountable member of the partnership.
LRF planning and activity should therefore not be seen as something separate and
discrete to BCP Council. The council has a duty to ensure that it is fully engaged in both
the development of multi-agency emergency plans and planning and, in the event of an
emergency, responding alongside partner agencies, drawing on the full range of council
resources to deliver both aspects.

Dorset LRF has a dedicated team funded by LRF partner agencies to facilitate multi-
agency planning in line with the requirements of the CCA. This is called the Dorset Civil
Contingencies Unit (CCU). The team currently has no legal responsibilities under the
CCA. The accountability remains with the category 1 and 2 responder organisations
who essentially pay the CCU to assist with delivering these CCA multi-agency planning
responsibilities.

Within BCP Council emergency planning and business continuity are council wide
responsibilities with all services having a role to play in planning and preparation and
responding when an incident occurs.

In summary, there are two modes of activity: planning and preparation and response
and recovery and these are carried out at two different levels, BCP Council (single
agency) and Dorset LRF (multi agency). The BCP Council Emergency Planning and
Resilience Team supports the council in driving resilience work forward in both modes
and at both levels and acts as the everyday interface with the LRF partnership.

Resilience Overview and National Update
7.

There are a number of factors that are increasing the spotlight on resilience and
intensifying scrutiny of how organisations are meeting their statutory duties. In addition
to this, they are bringing new requirements and workload. These factors are:

e COVID-19 - learning from the response to this and the renewed focus on
planning and preparation. The pandemic was a wake-up call in response to the
‘it will never happen’ attitude that has pervaded.

92



e LRF and BCP Council capability gaps — known gaps in planning, training etc
identified through risk and capability assessment, incident response etc

e Public inquiries including COVID-19, Manchester Arena and Grenfell and the
significant recommendations arising from these

e National Resilience Framework (2022) — the Government’s framework and vision
for resilience going forward with a whole-of-society approach (The UK
Government Resilience Framework (HTML) - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) This
means additional work with parish and town councils and communities as well as
business to drive the uptake of home emergency plans, community emergency
plans and business continuity plans. There are also pilots looking at the concept
of a Chief Resilience Officer, equivalent in rank to a Chief Constable or local
authority chief executive, as a full-time dedicated officer leading each LRF who
will be accountable to executive local democratic leaders. The aim of this would
be to ensure effective delivery of resilience activity including integrating resilience
into wider local delivery and levelling up as it is generally seen quite separately to
most other service delivery.

e The five-yearly review of the Civil Contingencies Act and the increased focus on
external assurance and publicly demonstrating an organisation’s preparedness in
line with the CCA.

e Martyn’s Law/ the Protect Duty arising from the Manchester Arena attack
whereby all public accessible venues over a legally specified capacity will need to
have contingency plans in place and ensure staff are trained.

¢ New national and local workstreams e.g. various counter terrorism workstreams
which involve humanitarian assistance, water safety

e Climate change — a chronic risk on the National Security and Risk Assessment,
the omni-present focus on this in the public domain and the increased frequency
of severe weather and issues that will ensue

e New national catastrophic impacts workstream acknowledging the increasingly
complex and interrelated nature of incidents when they occur and the systemic
impacts that arise as result. This covers risks such as a national power outage.

¢ Increase in likelihood of the majority of risks assessed on the National Security
and Risk Assessment 2022. Risk assessment is the first duty under the CCA and
this underpins the work of emergency planning.

In line with the requirements of the council’s statutory duties under the CCA there is a
need to ensure that all those with a role in responding are trained and familiar with their
roles. The turnover in staff across the council continues to impact all three duty levels
(Gold, Silver and Bronze) and work has been underway to recruit internally and train
new or incoming staff to ensure that the duty and command structure arrangements
remain robust.

All three duty levels attended a new mandatory training course late last year on
decision making in emergencies. The training was delivered by a barrister who has
significant experience in emergency response and public inquiries. A one-day tactical
emergency management training course was delivered by external trainers in
September to the newer cohort of council Duty Silvers. Staff also continue to attend a
range of multi-agency training delivered through the LRF training programme. As is
now a requirement of LRFs following a recommendation from the Manchester Arena
attack public inquiry, a record of all training is kept and presented to the LRF Executive
Board with a charge for non attendance having been introduced. BCP Council is
looking at its attendance as it had the second-highest non-attendance figure amongst
LRF partners for the year in the recent reporting.

93


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-uk-government-resilience-framework/the-uk-government-resilience-framework-html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-uk-government-resilience-framework/the-uk-government-resilience-framework-html

10.

11.

12.

13.

In February the Emergency Planning and Resilience Manager delivered an awareness
raising session to the Senior Leadership Network. Awareness amongst managers and
staff of the council’s and their responsibilities is an issue that arises during internal
debriefs to incidents and this was to address this.

The Emergency Planning Team is the council’s corporate team of professional
emergency planning and business continuity specialists. They act as facilitators and
enablers driving resilience planning and compliance forward. At full complement the
team consists of 5 team members. Three members of the team have recently resigned
leaving a significant resourcing gap. This gap is being addressed by restructuring the
team to better reflect the sensitive and challenging nature and demands of the role and
the considerable volume of work required to be undertaken. Whilst the higher grades
should be better equipped to meet the demands of the role and require less training
and development, this restructuring still leaves a capacity gap within the team to be
able to deliver the volume of work required despite rigorous prioritisation. New staff are
not likely to be in post until the new year. This will impact on service delivery.

As resource becomes more stretched across the council, the engagement from services
in the planning side of emergency planning and business continuity is becoming more
and more pressured. Resilience activity is often seen as an ‘add on’ to the day job rather
than being seen as part of it and this intensifies when services are under significant
pressure. This means that it is harder to progress work and that the timeframes for
completing work are becoming longer. This leads to gaps in plans and capability. It also
means that staff do not engage in training and exercising. The overall resilience of the
council as a result is reduced.

Emergency planning and business continuity were removed from the corporate risk
register last year and a new risk register held by the Corporate Resilience Board has
been established to capture relevant risks. Eachrisk is allocated to a Board member and
the risk register is reviewed at each Board meeting. Current risks on the register include:

e Failure of the agreed BCP Council resilience governance framework to effectively
deliver aims and objectives

e Lack of suitably trained and aware staff to carry out specialist emergency
response roles. More general recruitment and retention issues in operational
business as usual teams exacerbate the more specialist roles.

¢ Inability to collate vulnerable people and establishment data and map it in a
timely fashion to support incident response

e Lack of a properly resourced and equipped resilient coordination centre
e Lack of resilient telecommunications.

Emergency Response

14. The main incident response in the reporting period was the oil spill in Poole Harbour in

late March originating from the Perenco site. This was a challenging response as the
incident site actually sits within the Dorset Council area but most of the media and public
attention was focused on BCP Council given the association with Poole Harbour. The
lead agency was in fact Poole Harbour Commissioners. Amajor incident was declared in
response to the incident and the Local Resilience Forum emergency response was
stood up for a couple of weeks to co-ordinate the multi-agency response This then
transferred responsibility to the LRF Recovery Co-ordinating Group (RCG) which still
continues to sit six months after the event albeit with a much-reduced frequency. This
group is looking at aspects of recovery such as the remediation and clean up, cost
recovery and understanding the potential longer-term environmental impacts of the oil
spill. An external company has been commissioned to deliver a report looking at this. It is
due to report on its initial findings in the near future with a longer-term piece of work to
follow as it may take another couple of years to fully understand the longer-term
environmental position.

94



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The oil spill was a significant incident and enabled BCP Council to give a good test to its
response plans and arrangements. These stood up to the situation with lots of positive
feedback from BCP Council colleagues who were involved but also lots of learning. The
warning and informing element of the response was particularly complex and BCP
Council embedded a Comms Officer within PHC to support them with the communication
strategy and messaging in relation to the incident. BCP Council chaired the economic
recovery sub-group set up to focus on the business impact and assist with cost recovery
claims. This sub-group stood down after a few meetings as all the issues had been dealt
with.

Separate internal and multi-agency debriefs into the response have been completed with
debrief reports being produced containing a series of recommendations for future
preparation and response.

In line with ‘the polluter pays’ principle in pollution incidents, BCP Council has submitted
a claim to Perenco for recovery of officer time and assets deployed in response to the oil
spill.

There was also a near miss back in December 2022 when we came very close to
drinking water supplies being disrupted and unavailable. This would have seen about
25,000 properties in an area of BCP Council having to use alternative water supplies

(i.e. bottled water) or having ‘boil notices’ issued literally a couple of days before
Christmas. In these instances the council is required to work with the water companies to
assist with water distribution sites and also ensuring that water supplies reach the most
vulnerable taking into account any deprivation issues. Emergency Planning worked with
Bournemouth Water and a range of council colleagues to identify appropriate water
distribution sites and consider vulnerability issues.

The preparation also entailed cross border working with Dorset Council and Hampshire
County Council as the area affected was not just confined to BCP Council, but it was
most effective to work collaboratively to identify sites that would provide the easiest
possible access to a bottled water distribution site for all our affected residents. This
would potentially have meant non BCP residents coming to a BCP located site or vice
versa.

Thankfully it did not come to pass but the quick-time planning work in preparation
provided valuable learning. Southern Water in Hampshire also experienced some
significant water loss issues around the same time and so the BCP Council experience,
along with that of Hampshire, has provided some really good learning that is being built
into a short BCP Council water loss document that highlights issues and considerations.
An LRF loss of water working group that will look more specifically at alternative water
provision and how this can be planned for and carried out is just getting underway with
participation from BCP Council Emergency Planning. The freeze-thaw conditions that
were seen last December created a range of water loss issues throughout the country
and it is an issue that could be seen more frequently with changing weather patterns.

The other significant incident for BCP Council during the reporting period was the tragic
death of two young people in the sea in Bournemouth in May. This was not actually an
emergency in terms of civil contingencies, but it did necessitate a very rapid, co-
ordinated response by a range of agencies. BCP Council applied its emergency planning
principles to the situation and convened an internal Incident Management Team (IMT)
following the incident to coordinate the ongoing response and follow up to the incident.
A debrief has been held with a report and recommendations to be taken to the Corporate
Resilience Board.

An important area of learning arising from recent incident responses is in relation to staff
welfare for those directly involved or affected by the incident. This support applies not
only to emergency response but also far more broadly in day-to-day council activity. TriM
(Trauma Incident Management) support is used very widely by the emergency services
and voluntary agencies to support their staff following traumatic incidents and is a

95



recognised standard in this field. A range of support is available to BCP Council staff
through the employee assistance programme, but this does not include TrIM. A TriM
support offer has been under development co-ordinated by the HR Wellbeing Manager.
A small cohort of staff have been trained with the intention of introducing a pilot
programme.

Emergency Planning Update

23. Key emergency planning development and activity has been progressing in the following
areas:

Exercise Mighty Oak — this was a three-day national exercise involving
government that looked at how the country would respond to a national power
outage. Staff from BCP Council took part in all three days. The exercise was held
at Police headquarters in Winfrith with no access to technology or the external
world to try to replicate what it would be like responding in this particular scenario
with no power. Some of the exercise had to be scaled back as it took place three
days after the oil spill in Poole Harbour and so certain elements had to be pared
back to enable the emergency response to continue alongside participation in the
live exercise. The exercise had taken several months of intense activity to plan
and therefore LRF partners were keen to participate despite the ongoing
circumstances. Following on from this an LRF working group has been
established to take forward the learning from the exercise and subsequent
planning. Likewise, an internal BCP Council pan-organisational working group is
being established. A national power outage is deemed by the UK Government to
be a catastrophic risk (low likelihood but extreme impact) given the systemic
failure of power, utilities and disruption to all aspects of life that would ensue and
the prolonged period of recovery that would follow as a resullt.

As part of Exercise Mighty Oak, BCP Council also undertook a test of its message
cascade system. This is the manual process by which a message would be
cascaded throughout the organisation in the event of a significant issue arising from
an emergency or disruption which affects the council’s operations such as the
closure of the civic centre or a cyber attack affecting the use of corporate IT. The test
overall was a success with most managers able to reach the majority of their staff.
The test brought the cascade to life and made it real for people. This means that staff
better understand what is required and the practicalities of implementing a message
cascade as a result. It served to highlight gaps in arrangements and in the business
continuity planning behind these arrangements. It also demonstrated the value of
testing and exercising and familiarising staff with plans.

Alongside work planning for a national power outage there was a focus in
December and January on planning for and raising awareness of the potential for
rolling power outages during the period of peak power demand (usually for a
period of weeks following Christmas). This would be due to the demand for
electricity being greater than the country’s ability to generate it and demand
reduction measures would need to be brought in. This could lead to the electricity
supply to households being turned off for three-hour periods on a rolling
programme. The public would generally be given 24-hours’ notice, but it could
happen with no notice in the way a power cut may occur. There was considerable
focus on this last year as a result of the war in the Ukraine, but it is in fact an
ever-present risk with a national code publicly available that outlines the
approach. Electricity supply emergency code (ESEC) (publishing.service.gov.uk)
Staff were asked to consider the impacts of rolling power outages from a service
delivery perspective as well as a personal resilience one.

A new corporate cyber response plan had been drafted that would be used in the
event of an actual or suspected cyber attack which has had or has the potential to

96


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/995049/esec-guidance.pdf

have an adverse effect on the organisation. This was validated through an
internal tabletop exercise in November 2022. The plan was updated following the
exercise with learning and has been adopted by the Corporate Resilience Board.

Bournemouth Airport sits within the footprint of BCP Council and the council has
a responsibility to support the humanitarian response to an incident occurring at
the airport. It therefore has to work with the airport to plan and prepare how it
would work alongside agencies such as the police to support what are known as
a Survivors Reception Centre and Friends and Family Reception Centre. These
would be established at the airport following a significant incident at the airport
such as an air crash to support and gain information from those who had
experienced the incident. The airport has a legal requirement to test these plans
as a condition of its licence to operate issued by the Civil Aviation Authority. This
was postponed due to COVID but had to take place by March 2023. A live
exercise was held at the airport one evening in February. Colleagues from Adult
Social Care, Children’s Social Care, Housing and Emergency Planning all
participated in the exercise. This provided a useful opportunity for colleagues to
familiarise themselves with their role should the plans be invoked as well as
validating the arrangements. A considerable amount of learning was gathered
from the exercise and a small working group has been working over the past few
months to incorporate the learning into a new plan. The new plan will need to be
tested again and another live exercise is looking to be scheduled for winter
2024/25.

An emergency plan for the coordination of an evacuation of the islands of Poole
Harbour has been worked on during 2022/23 following recommendations from
previous exercises and incidents. This was adopted by the LRF earlier this year.
Although the islands are located within the Dorset Council area, the evacuees
would be brought to Poole and therefore BCP Council would be coordinating the
humanitarian response alongside a range of partners. A multi-agency tabletop
exercise was held in July to validate the plan. Some additional learning has been
collated from the debrief and the plan is being updated.

A further multi-agency tabletop exercise was also held to explore the evacuation
of the Studland peninsular. A wildfire broke out there in August 2022 and the
National Trustwas keen to work with partner agencies to look at exercising a
more significant version of this incident to inform the pulling together of a plan.
BCP Council was involved in the incident response in 2022 and also in the
exercise as an incident and evacuation of the peninsular did and would have a
significant impact on the BCP Council area.

Wildfires are a significant and ongoing risk with the potential for the risk to worsen
in future as a result of climate change. The UK is now seeing wildfires occurring
that are categorised as being of the same intensity as those occurring in parts of
Europe. A BCP Council wildfire response plan has been drafted by Emergency
Planning and is currently out for consultation with colleagues across the council.
A lot of work has been ongoing across the council in relation to wildfire response
and mitigation measures. The LRF wildfire response plan is also undergoing
review in light of new guidance from the Association of Chief Fire Officers
following a review of the wildfires across the UK in the preceding 12 months.

LRF Human Aspects Coordinator — within emergency planning the term human
aspects is widely used and means ‘those activities aimed at addressing the
needs of people affected by emergencies; the provision of psychological and
social aftercare and support in the short, medium and the long term’. (Eyre et al,
2007). This may include survivors of an incident, the family and friends of
survivors and the deceased, those responding to the emergency, and the
community living and working in the area affected. Local authorities are deemed
to be the lead planner and coordinator of human aspects planning and response

97



along with the lead for recovery. The human aspects area of work and the
associated plans have been identified as a gap across Dorset LRF and been
highlighted on the LRF risk register. As a result, BCP Council Emergency
Planning made a funding bid to Dorset LRF for a one-year post to fund a staff
member to address this capability gap. The funding has been approved and
recruitment to the post is getting underway. The post will sit within and be line
managed the BCP Council Emergency Planning and Resilience Team but deliver
a work programme on behalf of the LRF and not BCP Council workstreams.

e LRF Community Resilience Post - The UK Government Resilience Framework
(2022) commits to a whole-of-society approach to resilience so that individuals,
businesses and organisations all play a part in building resilience across the UK.
Local authorities are the lead on community resilience work and Dorset Council
and BCP Council agreed to make a funding bid for an 18-month post using LRF
funding to recruita Community Resilience Liaison Officer. An officer started in
role in February, hosted by Dorset Council, and has been engaged in a wide
range of activity with parish and town councils and community groups. This has
mainly been in the Dorset Council area to date with a programme being put in
place to start greater engagement across the BCP Council area working with
parish and town councils, ward councillors and community and networks groups.
Links for instance have been made with the children’s outreach coordinator at
AFC Bournemouth. Dorset Prepared, which is the community resilience branding
of Dorset LRF, hosted a stand for the four days of the Bournemouth Air Festival
led by the LRF Community Resilience Liaison Officer with support from partners.
This was to promote personal and community resilience, the idea of home
emergency plans and home emergency grab bags in case of evacuation, and
community emergency plans and community emergency hubs. This is an area
where there is still a considerable amount of work still to be done.

e An internal working group has been established under the Director Commercial
Operations who has the PROTECT brief to look at and prepare for the
introduction of Martyn’s Law. Emergency Planning is a key contributor to this
group. The draft Bill was introduced in July of this year but it has not yet been
passed as legislation and the final requirements and scope are not yet finalised. It
is expected to become law in December 20223/January 2024.

e A new LRF working group co-chaired by BCP Council and Dorset Council has
been established to look at the identification of the vulnerable and data sharing
around this in response to an incident and how we can better plan and prepare
for this. It is an area that all partners are required to consider as part of planning
but can be very difficult in reality in incident response.

e Dorset LRF will be running a 2-day live exercise, Exercise Eleos, in October
2024. Live exercises take a considerable amount of planning and a planning
group has been meeting since June to co-ordinate the work. The exercise
scenario will be based on the risk of coastal flooding across the Dorset LRF area
and both councils will be setting up and running a reception centre to practise
their arrangements. It will also look at the human aspects of response and longer-
term recovery from a significant flooding event.

Business Continuity Update

24. The main focus of business continuity activity continues to the completion of
service level BIAs (business impact analysis) and from this service level business
continuity response plans. The original deadline was 315t October 2022 with this
having been extended several times. This has been flagged by Internal Audit (see
section below) as it remains an outstanding item on the Corporate Resilience
Board.

98



25. During the reporting period there has been a number of notable business
continuity issues:

e The discovery of a malware issue which caused disruption to the Planning
service.

e Athird-party service failure which resulted in a loss of Careline services as
well as the out of hours customer service. A co-ordinated corporate response
was established to manage the impact of this.

e The loss of Customer Service daytime telephony.

26. All three of these issues have been reviewed with learning identified which will be
fed back into service level business continuity planning. Emergency Planning
facilitated a debrief of the out of hours issues and a report with recommendations
will be presented to the Corporate Resilience Board in due course.

27. All three incidents highlighted the need for robust business continuity plans and
staff awareness in order to recognise the scale of the disruption.

Internal Audit

28. Internal Audit has undertaken its periodic review of corporate emergency
planning and business continuity arrangements as a key assurance function. The
outcome is a reasonable assurance opinion which means that whilst there is
basically a sound control frameworkin place, there are weaknesses which may
put the service objective at risk. To this end Internal Audit made two medium and
one low priority recommendations to address the issues identified. These were in
relation to the fact that:

e not all services have completed business impact analyses and business
continuity plans in line with the corporate deadline and this deadline
continues to be extended.

e there is not a corporate programme of testing and exercising of plans in
place.

o there are gaps in the BCP Resilience Forum representation with not all
services having a nominated Service Representative with Responsibility for
Resilience and there are gaps in their attendance.

29. The recommendations are being looked at and appropriate action considered.
Given the current reduced resource in the Emergency Planning Team, supporting
delivery of a corporate training and exercising programme will remain
challenging.

Summary of financial implications

30. There are no direct financial implications of this report. The council’s Emergency
Planning and Resilience Team has an operating budget of £257,200 for 2023/24.
This budget provides the funding for 5 staff as well as standby and call out
payments for the 24/7/365 pool of Emergency Planning Duty Officers (Bronze).
Gold and Silver duty holders are not paid to be on call or if called out, this having
been evaluated within the pay and grading of their core roles. There is also a
£72,900 budget for the council’s contribution to the Dorset CCU as described in
paragraph 4.

Summary of legal implications

31. Failure to have in place effective emergency planning or business continuity
planning and arrangements may resultin the council not meeting its statutory
requirements under the Civil Contingencies Act.

99



Summary of human resources implications

32.

There are no direct human resources implications from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

33.

There is no direct sustainability impact from this report. However, it should be noted
that the frequency of emergencies related to severe weather, be it extreme heat,
drought, wildfires, storms or flooding, is likely to increase over coming years as a
result of climate change. Having seen the range of extreme and intense weather-
related incidents experienced around the globe in the past year, the council needs to
ensure it is well prepared to respond to the consequences of these through its
emergency planning and preparedness alongside any mitigation and adaption
measures through its climate change programme.

Summary of public health implications

34.

There are no direct public health implications from this report. Having emergency and
business continuity plans in place in line with the council’s statutory duties means that
it will be better placed to respond to public health emergencies or public health
consequences of incidents as and when they occur.

Summary of equality implications

35.

There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

36.

37.

38.

Failure to have in place effective emergency planning and business continuity
arrangements could result in the council not being able to effectively respond to
an emergency affecting Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole or not being able
to deliver critical services in the event of disruption.

As the organisation faces further resourcing challenges with a reducing workforce
the engagement from services in planning for emergencies and business
continuity becomes more and more limited as it is not seen as an immediate risk
or challenge compared to everyday activity. It also means that the timescales
required to complete planning activity are very much increased.

There is a business continuity risk to the organisation in terms of succession planning
arising from the considerable loss of knowledge and experience when staff leave.

Background papers

None

Appendices

There are no appendices to this report.

100



Agenda ltem 12

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter, 2023/24, Audit Plan Update
Meeting date 26 October 2023
Status Public Report

Executive summary This report details progress made on delivery of the 2023/24
Audit Plan for the period July to September (inclusive) 2023. The
report highlights that:

e 4 audit assignments have been finalised, including 1 ‘Partial’, 2
‘Reasonable’ and 1 ‘Consultancy’ audit opinions;

e 27 audit assignments are in progress, including 7 at draft
report stage;

e £12.7M of grant expenditure has been certified, as required by
the issuing Government department, as meeting grant
conditions;

e Internal Audit issued a report on seafront pop-up activity,
incorporating ‘Bayside’ restaurant making 18
recommendations. The Director of Commercial Operations has
led on implementing recommendations and has finalised other
investigatory work.

e For a breach of Financial Regulation, previously reported to
this Committee, an investigation has concluded and the
Director of Commercial Operations has taken action in line
with the disciplinary policy and procedures;

e Three apprentices have been successfully recruited, however,
the resignation of an auditor means that there will be further
impact on the delivery of the audit plan;

e 6 ‘High’ priority audit recommendations have not been
implemented by the original target date. Explanations from
respective Directors appear reasonable and revised target
dates have been agreed.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

a) Audit & Governance Committee note progress made and
issues arising on the deliveryof the 2023/24 Internal Audit
Plan.

b) Note the explanations provided (Appendix 3) and
determine, in the case of High Priority recommendations
not implemented by the initially agreed target date, if
further explanation and assurance from the Service /
Corporate Director is required.

101



Reason for
recommendations

To communicate progress on the delivery of the 2023/24 Internal

Audit Plan.

To ensure Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of the
significant issues arising from the work of Internal Audit during the

quarter.

Portfolio Holder(s):

Clir Mike Cox, Finance

Corporate Director

lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director Resources

Report Authors Nigel Stannard
Head of Audit & Management Assurance
@01202 128784
[=] nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Wards Council-wide

Classification

For Decision and Information

Background

1. This report details Internal Audit’'s progress against the 2023/24 Audit Plan for the
period July 2023 to September 2023 inclusive and reports the audit opinion of the
assignments completed during this period.

2. The report also provides an update on significant issues arising and implementation
of internal audit recommendations by management.

3. Some audit fieldwork has ‘straddled’ both the 2022/23 and 2023/24 Audit Plan years,

these audits are shown with the following description 2022/23/24".

Delivery of the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan — Quarter 2 review

4. Four audit assignments have been fully completed in this quarter of 2023/24 (Jul-
Sep 23) as outlined below.

2023/24 Audits Completed

Recommendations

. . Assurance
Service Area Audit & Scope Opini
pinion High | Med | Low
Care Leaver’s Offer
1 Corpor_ate Care experienced young Partial 1 2 0
Parenting people have been offered the
assistance theyare entitled to
BCP Homes Governance
Housing & Review — review of
" i [ 0
2 Communities arrangementsinthe following | Reasonable 1 5

key assurance function areas:
» AssetManagement

102



mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

YV VVY VY

VV VY

Financial Management
Business Resilience
Human Resources
ICT

Procurement
BusinessPlanning &
Performance
Management
RiskManagement
Information Governance
Health & Safety
Project & Programme
Management

Planning Contributions

» Contributions are
consistent, fairand/or
. fficient
Planning & s .
3 | Desti ? > The Council collects Reasonable 7
estination payments when due
» Records are complete,
accurate and/or timely
» Refunds
Performance
Management &
Governance
4 | Children’s Services| > To confirmthatassurance| Consultancy -
can be taken from the CS
Governance Framework
for high-risk areas and are
monitored effectively
Total Recommendations 14

Key:

e Substantial Assurance - There is a sound control framework which is designed to

achieve the senice objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.

e Reasonable Assurance - Whilst there is basically a sound control framework,

there are some weaknesses which may put senice objectives at risk.
e Partial Assurance -There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting
senice objectives at risk.

e Minimal Assurance - The control framework is generally poor and as such senvice
objectives are at significant risk.
KFS —Key Financial System
KAF — Key Assurance Function

5. There was one ‘Partial’ assurance audit reports issued during the quarter as follows:

Corporate Parenting —Care Leaver’s Offer

Three recommendations (1 high and 2 medium) were made in this Audit Report
which resulted in a ‘Partial Assurance’ audit opinion. The following issues were

found:

* Thereis no high-level overview of whether individual Care Leavers have been

offered appropriate services to meet their needs and whether outcomes have been

met (high)

103




There were no ‘Minimal’ assurance audit reports issued during the quarter.
The status of other audits in progress (Jul-Sep 2023) is outlined below:

The range of services which make up the Council’s Care Leaver Offer is not
currently available on the Council website (medium)

Pathway Plans for Care Experienced Young People are not being updated as
regularly as required (medium)

2023/24 Audits In Progress

Service Area Audit Progress
1 Finance Council Tax Data Analytics Draft Report
2 IT & Programmes Disaster Recovery Draft Report
3 People & Culture Scheme of Delegation Compliance Draft Report
4 Finance Business Continuity (Core KAF) Draft Report
5| Commissioning Brokerage & Contracts Draft Report
6 Finance Council Tax (KFS) Draft Report
7| operions | GomeToly [Py OueENS o eon
8 Finance NNDR (KFS) Fieldwork
9 zcshﬁﬁés) (Education Christchurch Infants School Fieldwork
10 zcsh;ﬁ;s) (Education Mudeford Juniors Fieldwork
11 zcggﬁg (Education Mudeford Infants Fieldwork
12| Adult Social Care Managing Other People's Money Fieldwork
13| Environment Bereavement Services Income Fieldwork
14| Children’s Services Agency Staffing Fieldwork
15| Finance Financial Assessment (KFS) Fieldwork
16| Adult Social Care Health & Safety and Fire Safety (KAF) Fieldwork
17 E::i/gaaerlging & Section 17 Fieldwork
18| People & Culture HR (Core KAF) Fieldwork
19| Adult Social Care Hospital Discharge Service Fieldwork
20| IT & Programmes Network Security (PSN/Cyber) Fieldwork
21| Finance Financial Management (Core KAF) Scoping
22| Finance Main Accounting (KFS) Scoping
23 ggtr‘ﬁriggn‘g&y Housing Tenancy (Counter Fraud) Scoping
24| People& Payrol (KFS) Scoping

104




Customer, Arts &

Business Planning & Performance Management

251 Pproperty — Customer Services (KAF) Scoping
26| Finance Treasury Management (KFS) Scoping
27|  Finance Treasury Management (Counter Fraud) Scoping
2023/24 Audits Planned for Quarter 3 (Oct-Dec 23) - Provisional
Service Area Audit
Commercial .
1 Operations Seafront Recruitment
2| People & Culture Employee Additional Payments Review
3| Children’s Services Risk Management (KAF)
4| IT & Programmes Project Management (Core KAF)
Schools (Education .
5 & Skills) St Katherines Church of England School
6| Infrastructure Road Safety
7| Finance Asset Management (Estates)(Core KAF)
8| Education & Skills Schools Admissions (Counter Fraud)
9| Finance Creditors (KFS)
10 Commissioning Procurement (Core KAF)
11 Education & Skills Pupil Premium Grant
12 Infrastructure Delivery of Regeneration
Planning & T
13 Destination Developer Contributions - Management of Spend
14 Law & Governance Information Governance (Core KAF)
15 Finance IR 35 Compliance
1§ Environment SEND Passenger Transport

9. The 2023/24 audit plan is kept under review to ensure that any emerging higher risks

Significant Issues Arising and Other Work

Grant certification work

10. During the quarter, work was undertaken to certify grant and external funding
schemes totalling approximately £12.7 million as required by the grant funding
conditions. The grants include:

Aspire;

"o TR

Supporting Families;

Various Department for Transport grants;
Disabled Facilities Grant;

Early Education Funding

105

are considered along with available resource. No additional planned changes have
been made to the 2023/24 audit plan during this quarter.




Review of Pop-up/Temporary activities incorporating Bayside restaurant

11.

12.
13.

14.

At the 27 July meeting of A&G Committee the following brief update was given:
Commercial Operations — Seafront : Review of Pop-Up/ Temporary Activities

Incorporating Bayside Restaurant

Eighteen recommendations were made. Due to the nature of the review, assurance
ratings were given across the sixteen agreed scope areas as follows - Minimal (3),
Partial (11), and Reasonable (1) (utilising the agreed assurance ratings adopted by
Internal Audit in line with the agreed Audit Charter).

It should be noted that the investigation found no evidence of fraud.

The final investigation report has only recently been issued and service management
are in the process of implementing the agreed recommendations and considering
any further actions that may be necessary. Once any further management actions
are determined, A&G committee will receive a further update which will include a
summary of the issues found and how the implementation of recommendations has
progressed.

The Executive Summary from the Internal Audit report is shown at Appendix 1.

The full Internal Audit report contains exempt information as set out in the Access to
Information Procedure rules:

The report contains information that meets the definitions at:
9.2.1. information relating to any individual;
9.2.2. information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual;

9.2.3. information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information);

The full Internal Audit report is provided at Appendix 2, should Councillors wishto
ask questions about the full report the Committee will need to move into a Part 2
session excluding the press and public.

The final audit investigation report was issued on 12 June 2023 and contained
eighteen recommendations. A summary of the recommendations is shown below:

e The overarching approach for pop-up restaurants and activities should be
formally documented.

e Formal consideration should be given to the creation of an overarching Pop-
Ups Programme.

e Consideration should be given to making appropriate reference to pop-ups
and inclusion of supporting high-level actions in Service and Team Plans.

e All future pop-up activities should be informed by a business case, financial
assessment, risk assessment and an issue log.

e Consideration should be given to completing formal Officer Decision Record
forms for all future decisions to undertake pop-ups and events.

e Arrangements should be put in place to ensure that Licence applications are
sufficiently focussed and detailed to allow key stakeholders to make a
pragmatic assessment of likely effects on legal duties including prevention of
public disturbance, public nuisance and harm to children.

106



Detailed financial analysis should be undertaken of contractors involved in
pop-up activities.

Formal consideration should be given to aggregating activities into larger
packages where possible and appropriate to do so to increase the number of
potential providers and potentially offer better value for money for the Council
through greater competition.

Where potential conflicts of interests are declared, detail should be provided
on how these are to be managed and whether the individuals or their
organisations currently or will potentially transact with the Council.

Contractual arrangements should ensure an appropriate balance of risk and
reward.

Sufficient time should be allowed to ensure Legal Agreements with suppliers
are drafted and signed-off as far in advance of operation as possible.

Stock control procedures and processes should be determined in advance
and sufficient time should be allowed between infrastructure installation and
commencement of trading to ensure they function as expected.

Budget codes and cost centres should be reviewed and disaggregated to
ensure that arrangements better align to activity and financial performance of
individual pop-up activities and events can be more readily measured.

Officers should be reminded that Purchase Orders should be raised at the
point of order and not on receipt of invoice.

Formal lessons learned exercises should be undertaken for each pop-up
‘project’ and the outcome documented and disseminated appropriately.

Process / responsibility for responding to FOI and other information requests
should be formally agreed to ensure they're dealt with as efficiently and
effectively as possible and with due regard to transparency principles.

Sufficient time should be allowed for planning future pop-ups and events
projects to ensure that risks and challenges are fully considered, and
alternative options are explored and evaluated.

For future in-house or hybrid operations, sufficient time should be allowed for
staff training and systems set-up following installation of infrastructure.

15. The audit investigation concluded that there was no evidence of fraud, although

16.

17.

various shortcomings were identified in terms of how the project was developed and
that learning has led to a range of actions required for improvement.

The findings and learnings from this audit report have been taken seriously by the
Service area as well as the organisation as a whole and the Director of Commercial
Operations is committed to ensuring the improvements and changes to practices
required are delivered upon.

The Director of Commercial Operations has instigated a number of actions to ensure
the recommendations are understood by staff and are acted upon, and to directly
respond to the audit report recommendations, some examples of the improvements
that have been made so far are:

Training delivered to staff on financial regulations and procurement
processes, this is due to be refreshed in the coming months.

107



18.

19.

e Staff understand the Officer Decision Record process, including when these
are required and how to complete them and Officer Decision Records are
now firmly established as standard practice.

e A review of the Seafront Strategy is underway, this will consider the fit of
Pop-ups to the strategic direction and intent of BCP Council and will help
inform the response to a number of the recommendations from the audit
report.

e Staff understand the income generation requirements for commercial
services, staff now ensure that all resource required to deliver and support
the service is taken into account when setting fees to ensure at least full cost
recovery is achieved.

e Teams are now carrying out regular reviews of services, reviewing
performance and operations to ensure triggers for pausing or ending a
service are identified as early as possible.

e Teams are owning the review of the operation and delivery of seasonal,
temporary or one-off services and activities, these reviews take place during
the operation as well as a more detailed review on completion of the service,
this includes a lessons learned log. For the 2023 seafront pop-ups offer, this
review is underway, once finalised, the findings and learnings will be
disseminated to wider teams and staff and will feed into the Seafront
Strategy review. An early learning identified from this review is that moving
forward, planning permission is required to have been obtained, where
required, for any pop-up offer.

e Declaration of interest forms submitted by staff, and where required
mitigations have been put into place.

Staff now take responsibility for undertaking their own mandatory training, this is
monitored by the Head of Service and is supported by additional guidance around
corporate processes and procedures. Dates for refresher, face to face, training
sessions where examples specific to Commercial Operation will be discussed are in
the process of being arranged.

As part of the response to the Seafront Pop-up and Bayside Restaurant internal audit
report findings, at the request of the Chief Operations Officer, an independent Code
of Conduct, disciplinary investigation has been undertaken in relation to one member
of BCP Council staff in connection to Bayside Restaurant, the focus of the
investigation was to consider four areas of concern which have been summarised
below:

e A declaration of interests form had been signed declaring a close personal interest
with an organisation, yet there were no measures taken to distance the staff member
involved from the procurement process

e The audit report highlights concerns relating to the contract award and the
subsequent financial performance. Appropriate scrutiny was not applied to the
financial forecast provided and the figures provided were unrealistic.

e The absence of a formal decision record does not facilitate transparency and public
justification and had the potential to be construed as masking improper influence
over procurement decisions.

e Limited risk assessment undertaken in procurement process.

108



20. The HR team sought to procure an external investigator to oversee this disciplinary

21.

22.

investigation, four external consultants were approached by the Council in relation to
this piece of work but none of them were able to commit to undertaking this work for
a variety of reasons including a potential identified conflict of interest, the
requirement for specific knowledge relating to internal local government procurement
processes and the perceived complexities of the case.

The disciplinary investigation was therefore undertaken by an independent BCP
Council Service Director who gathered evidence from a number of individuals as well
as undertaking a desk-based review of documentation.

The conclusion of the investigation was that ‘despite the fact that lessons can be
learnt, which are comprehensively detailed in the audit report, it is the conclusion of
this investigation that a specific disciplinary focus on the staff member investigated is
not warranted, that the allegations are not substantiated and that the involvement
they had does not constitute misconduct’.

Updated information on previous reported breach of Financial Requlations

23.

24.

25.

26.

As part of the July 2023 Annual Breaches & Waivers report to Audit & Governance
Committee, a breach (Br3) of £39,125 in respect of a wellbeing experience project
funded by European Regional Development Funding (ERDF — Aspire). A further
£9,120 was subsequently incurred in the same manner as the reported breach,
bringing the total breach to £48,245.

Also, as part of the July 2023 Annual Breaches & Waivers report to Audit &
Governance Committee report, a breach (Brl1l) of £425,000 was reported, as
follows, in relation to a project in the Destination & Culture directorate, which has
now been restructured and forms part of the Commercial Operations Directorate:

Brll, Destination & Culture, £425,000 (rounded) A Procurement Decision Record
(PDR) was appropriately created for an initial £25,000 to commission a strategy and
action plan for the project. A commissioning officer wongly assumed this PDR then
covered further work associated with delivering the strategy and action plan, and
further purchase orders were raised over a period of about 9 months. The Head of
Service is currently investigating the detail of this breach, supported by the new
Director of Commercial Operations. A further update will be presented to the A&G
Committee when this investigation has been concluded and the outcomes are clear.
In the interim the Head of Audit & Management Assurance was asked by the
Director, and has delivered, a training and awareness session covering BCP Council
Financial Regulations and Public Contract Regulations 2015 requirements for
commissioners within the new Commercial Operations Directorate.

An independent Code of Conduct, disciplinary investigation, by an officer from
another service area, has concluded that officers in Destination and Culture acted in
good faith but did not undertake appropriate training, diligence and self-awareness of
Council policies and procedures before commissioning and procuring services from
third parties resulting in the reported breach of Financial Regulations. The
investigation also concluded that there was insufficient supervision and lack of clear
management oversight which consequently missed opportunities to minimise the size
and span of the eventual breach. The Director of Commercial Operations has taken
action in line with the disciplinary policy and procedures.

The Director of Commercial Operations and the Head of Service has provided
training to staff to ensure the staff member connected to this breach as well as staff
across the service have the required knowledge and awareness of the financial
regulations and Council processes. This training is due to refreshed in the coming
months.

109



Internal Audit Team capacity and apprentice update

27.

At the previous quarterly update in July 2023 Committee, the Internal Audit team
were carrying a number of vacancies. Since then, we have successfully recruited
three apprentices who are now in post and commencing their Level 4 Chartered
Institute of Internal Auditors Internal Audit Practitioner apprenticeship this month.
One senior Auditor has since resigned and is leaving BCP Council in November. This
reduces the 2023/24 audit plan by approximately 110 days, approximately 70 of
which are direct core audit days. If left unfilled, this would result in 260 days, 160
direct core days in future years. Management are currently considering how this will
be managed for 2023/24 and in subsequent years, given the context of expenditure
controls and vacancy management arrangements, previous difficulty in recruiting
experienced audit staff and ultimately the impact on the Chief Internal Auditor to be
able to provide assurance through the annual report. Once this has been decided,
the Audit Plan for the remainder of the year will be reviewed and, if necessary, audits
deleted from the plan on a risk basis. If this is the case, the CIA will need to
proactively seek other assurance sources to be able to produce the annual
statement.

Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

It is a requirement of the Audit Charter that all High Priority recommendations that
have not been implemented by the initially agreed target date will be reported to the
Audit & Governance Committee. This is to ensure the Committee is fully appraised of
the speed of implementation to resolve, by priority, the most significant weaknesses
in systems and controls identified.

There were 6 recommendations across 4 audits which met the criteria, they are
shown in detail in Appendix 3.

It should be noted that the first 3 recommendations on the schedule are shown for a
second time as the agreed revised date has passed. Consequently, Internal Audit
have required a more detailed explanation as to why this was the case, shownin the
Explanation from Director column.

For the remaining 3, Internal Audit have received assurance that work is on-going to
address the risks highlighted by the recommendations and reasonable explanations,
explaining delays, have been received. Audit & Governance Committee are asked to
review Appendix 2, along with the explanations and the revised timescales. Relevant
Directors can be asked for further explanations as required, explanations can be in
written or verbal form, as the Committee deems appropriate for each individual
circumstance.

All remaining High Priority recommendations followed up during the period (in line
with the agreed action plan) were found to have been satisfactorily implemented by
management.

The Audit Charter also requires any management proposed revisions to the
implementation dates of Medium Priority recommendations to be agreed by the Chief
Internal Auditor, who will report to Audit & Governance Committee any such requests
considered unreasonable. There are no suchinstances this quarter.

Options Appraisal

34.

An options appraisal is not applicable for this report.

110



Summary of financial implications

35. The BCP Internal Audit Team budgeted cost for 2023/24 is £742,600 (subject to any
final pay awards) which is inclusive of all direct costs including supplies & services
but does not include the apportionment of central support costs (which are budgeted
in aggregate and apportioned to services as a separate exercise). The budget cost
above is inclusive of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance who manages
other teams.

36. The vacancies highlighted in paragraph 27, will result in an underspend against the
budget for this financial year. Depending on a range of factors, such as vacancy
clearance and recruitment timing, the underspend will be between £20,000 and
£30,000. Adding this underspend to those previously explained and reported in the
first part of the financial year will likely lead to an aggregate underspend of about
£50,000. This figure has been included in the outturn projections in the latest
corporate budget monitoring report.

Summary of legal implications

37. This report gives a source of assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk, control, and governance systems in place.

Summary of human resources implications

38. The BCP Internal Audit Team currently consists of 14.3 FTE. This includes 3.0 FTE
apprentices to cover 2.0 FTE formal establishment vacancies as per the July 2023
audit report. The FTE count will reduce by 1.0 FTE in November due to a known
vacancy arising as an auditor will leave for an external opportunity.

Summary of sustainability impact

39. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

40. There are no direct public health implications from this report.

Summary of equality implications

41. There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

42. The risk implications are set out in the content of this report.
Background papers
None

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Executive Summary Internal Audit report - Review of Pop-Up / temporary
activities incorporating Bayside restaurant

Appendix 2 — Confidential & Redated — Full Internal Audit report - Review of Pop-Up /
temporary activities incorporating Bayside restaurant

Appendix 3 - High Priority recommendations — original target date for implementation
not met

111



Appendix 1 — Executive Summary Internal Audit report —Review of Pop-Up/
temporary activities incorporating Bayside restaurant

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
Seafront: Review of Pop-Up / Temporary Activities
Incorporating Bayside Restaurant — 2022/23/24

A. Executive Summary

The objectives of this review were to determine and assess adequacy of govemance, oversight and
operational arangements relating to pop-up / temporary activities on the Seafront and Bayside Restaurant
in particular.

In total we have made 18 recommendations, 16 Medium Priority and two Low Prorty. A summary of
recommendations can be found in Appendix E.

Assurance
Rating

Area of Scope Key Findings

1.1 Produce Bayside Restaurant project timeline including officer key decisions N/A
2.1 Determine overall There is no pop-ups strategy in place nor other formal Partial
strateqy for use of pop- | articulation of the Seafront pop-ups approach and only scant

up restaurants and mention in the Seafront Strategy.

activities on Seafront

2.2 Review how pop-up | Pop-ups are mentioned in the Seafront Strategy in relation to Partial

restaurants and specific ‘character areas’ but there is no articulation of the
activities fit with overarching approach.
Seafront Strategy andior
other relevant strategies
2.3 ldentify and review | There is no overarching pop-ups programme nor associated Partial
associated service / plan in place.
project / programme / Servi . .
. rvice Plan makes no mention of ps and only passing
action plans reference n the [N Soice Pian

3.1 Determine overall There are no formal business plans or project plans in place
business planning for individual pop-ups.

arrangements for pop-
up restaurants and

activities

3.2 Review overall Mo formal business case was in place for Bayside. Reliance
adequacy of Bayside was placed on financial modelling information provided by
Restaurant business the third party operatar,

case

112



Area of Scope

Key Findings

Assurance
Rating

Restaurant business
case approval and
ongoing governance
arrangements including
roles and
responsibilities,
reporting and escalation
of issues arising.

4.1 Determine overall
process for procurement
and contract
management for
seafront pop-ups
including compliance
with Financial
Regulations

determine with no clearly documented formal decision record
beyond the limited detail contained within Procurement
Waivers.

The ulimate definitive decision to ecd with Bayside
appears to have been made b %
“ in June ]

Officers and third party contractors felt that, even where they
raised concerns, these were dismissed on the basis that
Bayside was a trial and it was what councillors andfor the
Council wanted. Many interviewees also reported that the
aims and objectives of the restaurant were unclear from the
outset.

Separate contracts were put in place with the Bayside and
Air Festival events and catering providers despite the two
suppliers essentially being a ‘package’.

regate & diture by Destination & Culture with
1s significant, more than £350k non-
tendered spend having incurred since April 2019

It is not clear that consideration has been given to
aggregating any of this work to make it more attractive to the
miarket and ensure value for money is obtained.

Cuoctations had not been obtained in the recant past for Air
Festival Hospitality provision (of which Bayside was amanged
as an extension) due to the absence of alternative suitable
providers, however, this assertion cannot be evidenced in
the absence of market testing.

Whilst not comprehensively reviewed, sample testing
suggests that other pop-up food outlets have been tendered
in accordance with Financial Regulations.

3.3 Review Bayside Of the four scenanos modelled by H the Partial
Restaurant business most likely case was only projected to returmn a profit of
case financial c.£36k, not accounting for profit sharing and apparent
assessment overstatement of takeaway income which would reduce the
Council's share of projected net profit to c £6k.
In June 2022 abortive costs of not going ahead with Bayside
were estimated at up to £80k, whereas in March 2022 they
were expected to be “up fo £25k" with cancellation of the
venture presented as “Maybe the most pragmatic oplion”.
3.4 Review Bayside Limited risk assessment was camied out as part of the Partial
Restaurant business Procurement Waivers process.
case risk identification - S
e ] | No formal arrangements were put in place for ongoing risk
sensitivity anal_yrsm_and and issue management.
plans for ongoing risk
and issue management | The widely held view amongst staff that Bayside was
undertaken at councillors’ insistence is not reflected in
mrr&ﬁﬁnderh:e between and
3.5 Review Bayside Decision making arrangements have been difficult to Partial

113




Key Findings

Assurance

Restaurant contract
management
arrangements

madel, but there was little meaningful management oversight
during operation.
Insufficient time was allowed between infrastructure

installation and opening to allow contract monitoring and
performance management arrangements to be put in place.

Rating

4.2 Review procurement | Contract design was weighted heavily in favour of the third Partial
arrangements for party operators with payment of a fixed fee plus profit share
Bayside Restaurant and no liability for losses.
mclu::jilng Spemﬁc:tm"’ Waivers were signed b
awatrr ptrg:zss an espite having declared a close
confrac 'gn personal relationship with the Directors of the ti

company. The [

made a similar declaration and was found to have

significant involvement in the Bayside decision.
4.3 Review Bayside Bayside was framed as a “trial’ of a mixed management Partial

for financial and
performance
management of seafront
pop-up restaurants and
activities with specific
focus on Bayside
Restaurant

6.1 Review lessons
learned from previous
pop-up projects
including Bayside
Restaurant

level and do not always align to activity.

Financial monitoring is undertaken at a high level which
masks individual pop-up [ event performance and nisks poor
performance going unnoticed and unchecked.

Sample testing identified instances of poor financial
management practice including miscoding and purchase
orders having been raised retrospectively following receipt of
invoice.

Mo formal lessons leamed exercises have been undertaken
for pop-up projects including Bayside.

Lessons were not leamed from a failed similar ‘upmarket
undertaking at West Chiff earier in 2022.

6.2 Review Bayside
Restaurant end of
contract arrangements
including equipment and
stock

Insufficient set-up time and subsequent system issues meant
that stock controls were largely non-existent throughout the
operating period.

There is no obvious evidence of over-ordenng, excessive

wastage or theft of stock, however, in the absence of robust
stock confrols, reasonable assurance cannct be given.

There was significant expenditure on front of house staffing,
arrangements for which appear to have been insufficiently
flexible to adapt to fluctuating demand.

3.1 Review calculation of | Arrangements appear reasonable. The final outtum figure Reasonable
expected outturn for was calculated to be a £173.5k net loss.

Bayside Restaurant to

confirm accuracy and

completeness

5.2 Determine process Budget codes and cost centres are aggregated at too high a Partial

Partial

114




Appendix 3 - Table showing High Priority recommendations where the original target date for implementation was not met

CTT

. Aims & objectives.
. Roles, responsibilities and accountabilities.
. How it links to the Council’s Big Plan and other relevant

corporate strategies.

. Governance arrangements, including oversightofthe
Capital Programme Board linking into the corporate capital and
reporting processes

. Links to policies such as condition survey, including
frequency and grading criteria used and impacton budget
setting process, Capital Project Methodology.

. How it links to the SEND Strategy and any other

additional funding received.

the recruitmentwork to implementthe new structure. Requesthas
been made through the Delivering Better Value Projectfor a project
manager to support mapping the procurementand commissioning
of additional SEND sufficiencyfor EOI through acceptance,
planning, legal, commissioning to build and populating with SEND
Children and Young People.

Recommendation Original Explanation from Director Revised Internal Audit
Target Target Comments
Date Date
Education & Skills - Alternative Provision (AP) 2022/23
The adequacyof placementmonitoring should be reviewed in 30/5/23 Children placed at Alternative Education Provision (AEP) schools 31/12/23 Full service
orderto be able to confirm that a young person placedin who are identified as at risk or who are not successfullyengaging redesignis
Alternative Provisionis receiving an equivalenteducation to with their placementare reviewed in detail with the AEP on a termly underwayto
that of mainstream schools. basis.Weeklyreports are received from any unregistered AEP address therisk.
regarding children placed with them. Whilstit is recognised this is . .
not sufficient, given current capacity limitations the approach to Intel.rlm actions to
prioritise has been chosen whilsta service review is underway. arg m.place.to
EHCP for SEND placementsin Alternative Provision are reviewed P”O”.t'.se chllqren
on anannual basis. Inclusion Service placements are reviewed on identified as rl_sk
at leastan annual basis. Review processes to be further developed ornon-engaging.
N through AP review and service redesign process.
f1Children’s Services — Capital Programme 2021/22
The Children’s Service Capital Programme Strategyshould be 30/6/22 Restructure paper for Children’s Capital has been considered by 31/12/23 Improvement
updated to ensure itconsiders the following: Children’s SLT and passed to CMB. Once accepted we can begin projectunderway

to address the
risks.




duplicate data exists.

SCCM should also bereconciled to the ICT assetregisteron a
regularbasis.

up by SCCM.

Ongoing reviews will be carried out by Service Delivery team at
regular periods (quarterly) to ensure consistency.

Recommendation Original Explanation from Director Revised Internal Audit
Target Target Comments
Date Date
The Service should ensure thatthe following improvementsto 30/6/22 Delays with the work to restructure the team mean thatinterim 31/12/23 Improvement
the programme governance arrangements are made: arrangements for the managementofschemes are continuing. The projectunderway
N . restructure was considered by Children’s SLTin August 2023 and to address the
. Determination ofa Programme Manager responsible . - . )
for the deli fthe Children’s Servi Canpital P includes provision fora Programme Manager, School Project risks.
orine delivery otthe Lhildren's services Lapital Frogramme. Manager and Assistantroles and a SEND Capital Lead. The roles
. Implementa standard capital projectmethodology that make up the team evaluated in July 2023. It is planned thatthe
which should include abusiness case /feasibilitystudy, a new structure will be implemented as soon as the formal approval of
projectgateway process and a clear approval process. the structure and HR activities are complete. Awaiting SLT approval
o o ) of revised budgetwhich now included On Costs. Then will be
: Formalisation for the commissioning of project passed to CMB for approval. Recruitmentcan then commence.
managers.
. Clarifying the Team / Board responsible for receiving
regular capital programme and projectupdates and in what
format.
W IT & Programmes — IT Infrastructure & Hardware Procurement & Asset Management
i . ) . Records have been reviewed and duplication of records identified .
dPThe ICT as;eF rgglstershould be reviewed to ensure the serial 30/9/23 and corrected. Serial numbers have been checked againstIntune 31/11/23 Actions are
numbers within itare accurate and complete. and SCCM to identify correct devices where possible to do so .und:erway:(:h
. . . ) i i i implementthe
Whilstthis is being done, all other data should be reviewed to remotely. Kitknownto have been disposed of previously recpommendations
confirm accuracy and completeness. decommissioned in Assist. '
User allocations have been checked and completed with the
exception of Tablets where a change is necessaryto the Assist
system to correct the upload of Useraccounts (scheduled forw/c
23/10/23)
Quarterly reviews will be carried out to ensure consistencyofdata in
future.
The configuration of System Centre Configuration Manager 30/9/23 Review has been taken of data in SCCM to identify inconsistencies. 31/11/23 Actions are
(SCCM) should be reviewed to ensure thatall active and Work is being carried out to correct errors in SCCM. A large number underwayto
inactive assets are reported correctly. After this, data used by of devices that are in Assistbut notin SCCM are new kit still stored implementthe
SCCM should be reviewed to ensure itis correct and that no by XMA in their warehous e awaiting call off so would not be picked recommendations.




Recommendation Original Explanation from Director Revised Internal Audit
Target Target Comments
Date Date
Adult Social Care — Brokerage Procurement
Ensure Booking forms and/or letter of agreements are in place 30/9/23 Due to the timing ofthe recommendation targetdate, an update will To be An update will be
for all parties involved in a timely manner. Ensure signed be provided at the next A&G Committee ifnecessary. agreed if provided at the
copies are retained. necessary | next A&G
Committee if
necessary.

LTT




This page is intentionally left blank

118



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work and
Whistleblowing Referrals 2022/23

Meeting date 26 October 2023

Status Public Report

Executive summary This report details counter fraud work carried out by Internal
Audit to provide assurance on the Council’'s response to combating
fraud and corruption.

Internal Audit have investigated all allegations of suspected fraud or
financial irregularity in a proportionate manner.

Six formal whistleblowing referrals for the Council were received
and investigated by Internal Audit during 2022/23.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

a) the counter fraud work & investigations carried out by
Internal Audit during 2022/23 be noted;
b) the whistleblowing referrals received during 2022/23 be

noted.
Reason for To enable the Audit & Governance Committee to consider the
recommendations effectiveness of the Council’'s governance arrangements

surrounding counter fraud and corruption including whistleblowing.

Portfolio Holder(s): Clir Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance
Corporate Director lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources
Report Authors

Nigel Stannard
Head of Audit & Management Assurance

(=7 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Wards Council-wide
Classification For Decisionand Information
Background

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Audit & Governance Committee of counter
fraud work undertaken by Internal Audit during the 2022/23 financial year for
the Council.

163


mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

2. This report also provides a summary of the number, nature and outcome of specific

investigations and formal whistleblowing referrals received for the Council during
the 2022/23 financial year.

Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work 2022/23

3.

Internal Audit have carried out the following work to provide assurance on the
Council’s response to combating fraud & corruption:

Strategic

e« The BCP Council’s Corporate Fraud Risk Register was reviewed and
updated during the year.

e« The BCP Council Anti-Fraud & Corruption, Whistleblowing, Declaration of
Interests, Gifts & Hospitality, and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
(RIPA) & Investigatory Powers Act (IPA) policies were reviewed and updated in
the year as part of the annual evolution process. All have been assessed as
performing effectively during 2022/23. These policies are subjectto an annual
evolutionary review and approval by the Audit & Governance
Committee. NOTE Linksto these documents are at the end of this report under Appendices.

e Internal Audit’s investigation case management system was migrated to the
Microsoft dynamics environment to provide future resilience and allow for
dynamic reporting via Microsoft's PowerBI tool.

Culture

o Monitored general employee fraud awareness through completion of the
BCP Council mandatory e-learning modules which covered fraud prevention,
bribery and whistleblowing. The table below show the number of courses that

have been completed over the last three years and the current year to September

2023:

2020 2021 2022 2023 (Jan-Sep)

527 1671 1822 1424

These figures show that a large number of existing employees, in addition to new
employees, have completed the e-learning in the last three years. Human
Resources are currently promoting the use of the new learning management
system (SkillGate) to further improve completion of all corporate mandatory
training (including the fraud awareness module) by the end of 2023.

e Fraud awareness sessions were provided to specific officers and senior
management teams as required during the year.

Deterrence

e Corporate fraud communications were published in the year to promote fraud
awareness and give guidance to staff on counter fraud policy/procedures.

e Issued specific ‘Fraud Alerts’ to relevant service areas (including schools)
throughout the year. These alerts come from a variety of sources including the
Council’s bank, local authority sector groups and central government entities.

Prevention & Detection
e Participated in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching exercises during
2022/23, outcomes to report to date are as follows:
> 307 Blue Badges have been cancelled as a result of matches against
deceased national records.
> 537 concessionary travel passes have been cancelled as a result of matches
against deceased national records. Work s still ongoing to review the
remaining matches.
> Several matches of employees to company directors have resulted in
reminders being issued to some officers of the need to declare potential
declarations of interests.

164



> Work has been postponed on the duplicate creditor payment matches due to
prioritising the implementation of the new finance and human resources
system. An update will be provided to this committee of any findings in this
area.

> Council Tax Single Person Discounts match — Internal Audit have recently
commenced work on this area as part of a pilot to increase council tax yield.
To date 15 discounts with a total value of approximately £10k have been
removed. Further resource to progress these savings using Internal Audit
Practitioner Apprentices will soon be in place.

e Seven high risk fraud areas were reviewed as part of the 2022/23 Audit Plan as
detailed in the table below:

Fraud Risk Area Outcome & Recommendations

Identity Fraud Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

An improvement to officer training and guidance, to assist
them with identifying fake physical or electronic identity
documents, was recommended.

Grant Award Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

Improvements to processes and controls covering grant
award, payments and use of expenditure were
recommended across several service directorates.

Declaration of Interests | Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

(councillors), Improvements to the process for ensuring interests are

promptly declared and register records are fully detailed
were recommended.

Right to Buy Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

An improvement to ensure a consistent application
process was in operation across the housing service was
recommended.

Housing Tenancy Data | Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

Matchin . .
9 An improvement to ensure regular internal and external

data matching exercises to detect potential housing
tenancy fraud was recommended.

Criminal Finances Act | Substantial assurance audit opinion.

R iremen .
equirements No formal recommendations were made.

Anti-Money Laundering | Reasonable assurance audit opinion.

Requirements Improvements to the anti-money laundering e-learning

module and the corporate fraud risk register were
recommended.

e As part of the 2023/24 Audit Plan the following high-level fraud risk areas are
planned to be reviewed; contract award, schools admissions, anti-bribery
requirements, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and Investigatory Powers
Act requirements, treasury management payments, housing tenancy, and
homecare/residential care payments.

165



Investigations

e Internal Audit have investigated all allegations of suspected fraud or financial
irregularity in a proportionate manner. Details of investigations that have been led
or carried out by Internal Audit during 2022/23 are detailed in Appendix A. This
appendix involves exempt information and is submitted as a confidential paper to
this report. An additional list of all thefts of Council equipment reported to the
Insurance Team has also been included in Appendix A.

NOTE - Human Resources are responsible for supporting managementwith investigationsinto
potential staff misconduct for matters which are non-financial related.

Corporate Counter Fraud Work

4. During 2022/23 Internal Audit have provided specialist investigative resource to

support Management with high risk fraud areas.

Note - Single Fraud Investigation Service (DWP) are responsible for taking action regarding
Housing Benefitfraud and BCP Revenues and Benefits or the Stour Valley and Poole Partnership
(depending on legacycouncil locality) are responsible for taking action on Council Tax and NDR

fraud.

5. Workwas carried out with BCP Housing teams to assistin the validation of all Right
to Buy and Housing Tenancy Applications. The results of this work are detailed

below.
Fraud Risk Area Total 22/23 Total 21/22 Total 20/21
Right to Buy Checks 36 80 75
Applications withdrawn 1 3 1
Cases Refused 0 0 0
Housing Application Checks* 822 691 953
Nominations withdrawn 1 7 24

~*This checkis carried out at the pointof nomination to a propertyi.e. at the stage of being offered a
property. The Housing Service carry out a similar check at the application stage and ithas been agreed for
2023/24 onwards thatInternal Audit will provide an advisory/sample check service only for this fraud risk
area.

6. Work has also been carried out to assist with the investigation of Blue Badge and
Housing Tenancy fraud referrals as detailed below:

Fraud Risk Area Total 22/23 Total 21/22 Total 20/21
Blue Badge Referrals 25 21 9
Badges recovered 1 0 0
Warning letters issued 1 3 3
Housing Tenancy Referrals 32 49 36
Property recovered 1 1 1
Property succession refused 1 0 0

COVID Grant Verification and Investigation Work

7. Some residual assurance work was carried on Covid-19 grants as required by
government guidance and/or requirements using government promoted tools e.qg.
Spotlight for business trading status and the NFI for bank account validation and

trading status.

8. Two referrals were received during the year regarding Covid grants to individuals or
companies that were alleged to be erroneous or fraudulent. After investigation no
further action was required on the basis the grant recipients met all government

criteria for the grant award.

166




Local Government Transparent Code 2015

9. The Transparency Code requires the annual publication of data relating to the
Council's counter fraud work. The table below reproduces the information published

on the Council’s website (for information).

Mandatory Publication Level 2022/23

2021/22

2020/21

Number of occasions that powers have been 0
used under the Prevention of Social Housing
Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England)
Regulations 2014, or similar powers.

1

0

Headcount 4
FTE 2

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent)
of employees undertaking investigations and
prosecutions of fraud.

Headcount 5
FTE 2.1

Headcount 6
FTE 2.2

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) Headcount 2

Headcount 3

Headcount 4

Total number of fraud cases investigated.

of professionally accredited counter fraud FTE 1.25 FTE 1.35 FTE 1.45
specialists
Total amount spent by the authority on the £96,139 £110,712 £115,501
investigation and prosecution of fraud.
(aggregate salaries + on-costs)

176 206 132

10. The 176 total cases investigated in 2022/23 is broken down by type in the table
below along with a comparisonto the previous year 2021/22:

Invgstigation Type — Fraud, financial irregularity or 2022/23 2021/22
whistleblowing

Council Tax Discount — public tip off, usually anonymous 67 69
Housing Tenancy - public tip off, usually anonymous 34 46
Blue Badges - public tip off, usually anonymous 25 18
Internal Audit led investigations (confidential Appendix A) 22 35
Fraud referrals not related to BCP Council (after initial investigation) 12 17
Unpaid Non Domestic Rates - public tip off, usually anonymous 5 6
Housing Applications - public tip off, usually anonymous 4 6
Direct Payments misuse - public tip off, usually anonymous 0 2
Other miscellaneous 7 7
TOTAL 176 206

Counter Fraud Best Practice

11. An annual assessment has been carried out to review the Council’s arrangements on

managing the risk of fraud and corruption using a tool provided by CIPFA.

12. The current assessment outcome (93%) states: “The organisation is meeting the
standard set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption. The leadership has acknowledged its responsibilities for managing the
risks and it has robust arrangements in place to identify and manage risks. Ithas a
counter fraud strategy, backed up by the resources and arrangements in place to
carry it out. The organisation is proactive in managing fraud and corruption risks and
responds effectively. Stakeholders can be confident in the approach taken by the
organisation and meeting the standards of the counter fraud code contributes to
good governance. Whilst no organisation is ‘fraud proof,’ the organisation has taken
robust steps to ensure its resilience. This high level of performance should be
acknowledged within the organisation’s annual governance report.”

167




13. To further improve arrangements an action plan is in place which considers best
practice contained in this CIPFA assessment and also the “Fighting Fraud and
Corruption Locally 2020” updated counter fraud and corruption strategy for local
government.

14. The counter fraud resource available during 2022/23 has enabled the Council to
achieve its goal of continually improving its resilience to fraud (as stated in the Anti-
Fraud & Corruption Policy).

Whistleblowing Referrals 2022/23

15. A Whistleblowing Policy exists to ensure qualifying individuals are able to raise
concerns they may have safely, without fear of harassment or victimisation. There
are certain types of disclosure covered by a Whistleblowing Policy which are
specified in the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

16. The Council’'s Whistleblowing Policy, approved annually by this Committee, requires
a summary of the number, nature and outcome of Whistleblowing referrals
investigated in the year to be presented to this Committee.

17. Six formal whistleblowing referrals were received and fully investigated during the
last financial year (April 2022 - March 2023), details are included in Appendix A. All
these cases were resolved in line with the Whistleblowing Policy.

18. Use of the BCP Whistleblowing Policy is promoted through reminders in ‘Fraud
Bulletins’ to all staff, briefings at officer meetings and as part of the Fraud Prevention
e-learning module on the Council’s intranet.

19. The Policy will continue to be subject to annual evolution and annual approval by this
Committee.

Options Appraisal

20. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report.

Summary of financial implications

21. The Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally 2020 strategy states “Every £1 that a local
authority loses to fraud is £1 that it cannot spend on supporting the community”.

22. It is recognised that fraud against the Council harms residents and taxpayers of
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole and for that reason fraud and corruption will
not be tolerated.

23. The total amount spent by the Council on the investigation and prosecution of fraud
is summarised inthe Local Government Transparency Code 2015 table in paragraph
9 above.

Summary of legal implications

24. There are no direct legal implications from this report.

Summary of human resources implications

25. There are no direct human resource implications from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

26. There are no direct environmental implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

27. There are no direct public health implications from this report.

168



Summary of equality implications
28. There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

29. The risk implications are set out in the content of this report.

Background papers
None
Appendices

Appendix A — Internal Audit Investigations and Thefts of Council Equipment reported to
Insurance Team 2022/23 (Confidential)

BCP Council Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy

Internal access
External access

BCP Whistleblowing Policy

Internal access
External access

BCP Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality (for officers)
Internal access

BCP RIPA and IPA Policy

Internal Access
External access

169


https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Finance/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents%2FAnti%20Fraud%20and%20Corruption%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Documents/Anti-Fraud-and-Corruption-Policy-2023.pdf
https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Finance/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents%2FWhistleblowing%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Documents/Whistleblowing-Policy-2023.pdf
https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Finance/SitePages/Declaration-of.aspx
https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Finance/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents%2FRIPA%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FFinance%2FShared%20Documents&p=true&ga=1
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Documents/RIPA-and-IPA-Policy-2023.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank

170



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

171



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject Forward Plan - Refresh for the 2023/24 municipal year
Meeting date 26 October 2023
Status Public Report

Executive summary This report sets out the list of reports to be considered by the Audit
& Governance Committee for the 2023/24 municipal year in order
to enable it to fulfil its terms of reference.

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:

The Audit & Governance Committee approves the Forward
Plan set out at Appendix A.

Reason for To ensure that Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of
recommendations the reports to be considered during 2023/24.

Portfolio Holder(s): Clir Mike Cox, Portfolio Holder for Finance

Corporate Director lan O’Donnell, Corporate Director for Resources

Report Authors Nigel Stannard

Head of Audit & Management Assurance
@01202 128784
(=1 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Wards Council-wide
Classification For Recommendation Decision
Background

1. Good practice dictates that a forward plan should be agreed which sets out the
reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance Committee over the next 12
months.

The Forward Plan

2. The Forward Plan for 2023/24, as set out at Appendix A, has been produced to set
out proposals for the forward management of reports to be considered by the Audit
& Governance Committee in order to enable it to fulfil its terms of reference.

179


mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

3. The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the plan does not preclude
extraordinary items being brought before the Committee in consultation with the
Chair and Vice Chair as necessary and appropriate, thus ensuring that Audit &
Governance Committee business is consistent with the terms of reference.

4. Topics requiring this Committee’s consideration within its terms of reference can be
added at any time in the year or as they arise. These topics are generally shown in
the ‘Ad Hoc/Other Reports’ or ‘Presentations’ sections of the Forward Plan,
Appendix A, and depending on their nature are usually added to a meeting marked
‘extra’. These additional reports/presentations are made available to the public with
the meeting minutes.

Options Appraisal

5. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report.

Summary of financial implications

6. There are no direct financial implications from this report.

Summary of legal implications

7. There are no direct legal implications from this report.

Summary of human resources implications

8. There are no direct human resource implications from this report.

Summary of sustainability impact

9. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.

Summary of public health implications

10. There are no public health implications from this report.

Summary of equality implications

11. There are no direct equality implications from this report.

Summary of risk assessment

12. Development and agreement of the Forward Plan by the Audit & Governance
Committee enables it to fulfil its terms of reference.

Background papers
None

Appendices
Appendix A — Audit & Governance Committee — Forward Plan 2023/24

180



APPENDIX A
Audit & Governance Committee — Forward Plan 2023/24

27 7 26 30 11 7 11
REPORT JuL SEP | oCT NOV | JAN | MAR | APR
2023 | 2023 | 2023 | 2023 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024

(extra) (extra) (extra)

ANNUAL REPORTS

As required depending on External Audit

Statement of Accounts 2021/22 & 2022/23 timetable

Annual Gowernance Statement 2022/23 and Annual
Review of Local Code of Governance (1 update on v v,
Action Plan only)

Chief Internal Auditor's Annual Opinion Report
2022/23

Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of Financial
Regulations Report 2022/23

Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts &
Hospitality by Officers 2022/23

Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and
Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report 2022/23

Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work
and Whistleblowing Referrals 2022/23

Emergency Planning & Business Continuity Update

ANAN

Health & Safety and Fire Safety Update

Treasury Management Strategy Refresh/Approval for
next financial year

Assurance Framework & Internal Audit Planning
Consultation

Information Gowernance Update v

Internal Audit Charter & Audit Plan for next financial
year

ANNUAL OR PERIODIC POLICY UPDATES

Annual ewolution of Policies for 2024/25:
- Whistleblowing

- Anti-Fraud and Corruption v
- Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality

- Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and
Investigatory Powers Act (IPA)

Financial Regulations - annual ewolution for 2024/25. v

QUARTERLY /HALF YEARLY REPORTS

Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update

Risk Management — Corporate Risk Register Update

ANRNAN

Forward Plan (refresh)

ANRNANAN
ASRYAYAS
ANRYAYAN

Treasury Management Quarterly Monitoring Report

AD HOC / OTHER REPORTS

Appointment of Independent member(s) to Audit &
Gowernance Committee

AN
AN

As required follow ing agreed working party or

Review of the Council’s Constitution v committee recommendations

PRESENTATIONS (rather than formal reports)

Treasury management training and awareness Separate virtual session planned

EXTERNAL AUDITS REPORTS

External Auditor — Audit Plan 2022/23 (.2023/24) v

v
External Auditor — Audit Findings Report 2021/22 v As required depending on agreed
(32022/23) timetable and national issues 3

External Auditor — Auditors Annual Report 2021/22 v As required depending on agreed timetable and
(42022/23) national issues 4

External Auditor — Audit Progress & Sector Update v v v

181




This page is intentionally left blank

182



	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	6 External Auditor – Audit Progress & Sector Update
	Appendix A – Grant Thornton – BCP Council – External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	Slide 1: Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council   External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress as at October 2023
	Slide 5: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 6: Sector Update
	Slide 7: Delayed publication of audited local authority accounts
	Slide 8: Delayed publication of audited local authority accounts
	Slide 9: Local government procurement and contract management-
	Slide 10: SEND deficits kept off budgets for another three years
	Slide 11: Stonewall Gold Employer: GT’s LGBTQIA+ inclusion journey  
	Slide 12: Sustainability: Finance at the heart of decision making
	Slide 13


	7 Treasury Management Monitoring update for Quarter 2 2023/24
	Appendix 1 - Liability Benchmark

	8 Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update
	Appendix 1 for Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update
	Appendix 2 for Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update
	Appendix 3 for Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update

	9 Appointment of Independent co-opted members to Audit & Governance (A&G) Committee
	10 Governance of Corporate Health & Safety and Fire Safety
	11 Emergency planning and business continuity annual update
	12 Internal Audit - 2nd Quarter, 2023/24, Audit Plan Update
	Appendix 2 – Confidential & Redated – Full Internal Audit report - Review of Pop-Up / temporary activities incorporating Bayside restaurant

	13 Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work and Whistleblowing Referrals 2022/23
	Appendix A – Internal Audit Investigations and Thefts of Council Equipment reported to Insurance Team 2022/23 (Confidential)

	14 Forward Plan - Refresh for the 2023/24 municipal year
	Appendix A – Audit & Governance Committee – Forward Plan 2023/24


